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DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 231 AUGUST 2024

The Directors present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor's report of
the charitable company for the period from 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2624. The annual report
serves the purposes of both a Trustees’ report and a Directors’ report, including a strategic repon,
under company law.

The Trust operates 7 Primary Academies and 1 Secondary Academy within Coventry, Nunaatorn and
North Warwickshire for a combined pupil capacity of 4491 {Reception to Year 11 inclusive) and 4334
{Reception to Year 11 inchisive) enrolied, hased on the May 2024 Census. Stockingferd Primary schoot
holds the rnost surplus pupit numbers at 135.

In addition, the Blue Coat Sixth Form has 335 pupils currently enrolled, and 300 pupil capacity based
on the May 2024 census, As in previous years the surpius is managed through a blended learning
model,

The Trust also provides Primary Nuisciy places at 6 Academies, they have 277 pupils currently
enrolied. This does vary in this age group due to the options that children can attend — i.e. 15 hr.
places/30 hr, places. We have previously operated 2-Year-Old Provision but at the end of summer
2023 closed our final base at Hearsall due to fow numbers attending.

Therefore, based on the May 2024 census, the Trusi has a fotal of 4,946 pupils enrolled within its
acadermies from Nursery to Year 13 inclusive.

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Constitution

The Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity, The charitable company's
Memorandum and Articles of Association are the primary governing documents of the Tiusi

The Trustees ara also the Directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law. The
registered name of the Charitable Company is Inspire Education Trust. Here in, it may be refefred to
as “Inspire Education Trust”, “the MAT", or “the Trust".

Details of the Trustees who served throughout the year and to the date of the approval of this report
and the financial statements are included in the Reference and Administrative Details on page 3.

Members’ Liability

Each Member of the Charitable Company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the Charitable
Company in the event of it being wound up while they are a Member, or within one year afler they
cease to be a Member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities
contracted before they ceased to be a Member.

Trustees' Indemnities

The Trust has opted into the Departiment of Education's Risk Protection Arrangement {'RPA’), an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. The scheme protects
Members, Directors and the Local Governing Committee members from claims arising from negligent
acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on Trust business. The scheme provides cover up to
£10,000,000,

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Directoss

Following formal approval of new Articles by the Secretary of State, the trust has now adopted the DfE
standard model Aricles in a3 move away from the previous bespoke ones, and have the following
Directors:

+ 7 Directors appointed by Members
» 2 co-opted Directors appointed by Directors

Directors are appointed for a 4-year period. Subject to remaining eligible to be a particular type of
Director, any Director ¢can be re-appointed or re-elected for 1 further term, meaning no Director can
serve move than 8 years in total.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024 (cont'd)

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Directors {cont'd)

When appointing new Directors, the Board will consider the skills, experience and mix of existing
Directors in order to ensure the Board of Directors has the necessary skills to contribute fully to the
Trust's ongoing development. This is reviewed on an annual basis via a relevant skills audit and
discussion at a Board meeting.

When a Director vacancy arises, the Trust has previously utilised the expert services of Governors for
Schools who use the information we provide ~ role outlines, person specifications and skills gap
analysis in order to advertise for a suitable candidate. This year we recruited one new Director via
internal contact networks, who was then interviewed by the Chair and another Director to finalise
suitability. A formal application process is also overseen by Members, including reference taking for
member appointed directors.

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the induction and Training of Directors

Inspire Education understand that our Directors and governors require continuous professional
development just as much as our staff and as such, current Directors and governors are offered a suite
of training that takes place within a blended model with some programmes delivered ‘in house’ and
others by external expert third parties.

Each year a skills audit is undertaken for Directors and governors and the outcomes of this are used
to inform the training that is offered.

in 23/24 severail face-to-face training events were held phase wide for governors and Directors that
covered topics such as:

» 16 October — monitoring and evaluating the curriculum
o 18 March — how to effectively challenge and support through LGC meetings and governor visits

¢ 18 June — SEND training
New governor induction training sessions were also conducted each term.

Organisational Structure

The Directors are responsibie for setting general policy. adopting an annual Trust development plan
and budget, approving the annual statutory accounts, monitering the Trust by the use of budgets and
other data, and making the major decisicns abcut the direction of the Trust, capital expenditure and

senior staff appointments.

The Board of Directors normally meet at least 6 times each year. The Board of Directors establishes
an overall framework for the governance of the Trust and determines membership, ferms of reference
and procedures of Committeés of the Board of Directors and other groups. it receives reports including
policies from its Committees for ratification. It monitors the activities of the Committees through the
minutes of their meetings and through direct reporting from the elected Chair of each Committee, The
Board of Directors may from time {o time establish working groups to perform specific tasks over a
limited timescale.

There are Commitiees of the Board of Directors as follows:

* Finance, Audit and Risk Committee (FARC)
e Curriculum, Standards and Quicemes Committee (CSOC)
= Pay, People and Performance Committee (PAPP)

Each Committee has its own terms of reference detailing the responsibiiities discharged to it. Each
school has a Local Governing Committee (LGC) which has delegated authorities from the Trust Board.
The LGC of each of the schools is responsible for implementing the policies laid down by the Directors
and reporting back to them. They scrutinise the performance of the individual schools. The commitiees
are made up of parents, staff, and co-opted governors. They have responsibility for the Performance
Management of the Heacdteacher. In addition, there is a Chairs' Development Commiitee which the
Chairs and Vice Chairs of the LGCs can attend. The purpose of this committea is to enhance
communication between the Trust Board and the LGCs and act as a mechanism for information sharing
and the sharing of best practice.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024 (cont’d)

Organisational Structure
The following decisions are reserved fo the Full Board of Directors:

= to consider any proposals for changes to the status or constitution of the Trust and its committee
structure.

» . {0 appoint oF ramove the Chair and / of Vice Chalr; and

¢ to appeint and / or consider the performance management of the Chief Executive.

The Directors have devolved the day-to-day management of the Trust to the Executive Leadership
Team ('ELT"), which is led by the Chief Executive. In 2023-24 the ELT comprised of the Chief Executive
Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Education Primary, Headteacher of Blue Coat Academy, Head
of HR and the Senior Executive Assistant.

The Chief Executive is the Trust's Accounting Officer and has overall responsibility for the day-to-day
financial management of the Trust. The ELT implements the policies aid down by the Directors and
reports back to them on these and the Trust's overall performance.

All of the above roles, responsibilities and delegations are included within the Trust's Scheme of
Delegation which is reviewed and approved by the Board annually.

Arrangements for Setting Pay and Remuneration of Key Management Personnel

The Board of Directors consider the Executive Leadership Team to comprise the key management
personnel of the Trust in charge of directing and conirclling. running and operating the Trust on a day-
to-day basis. All Directors give of their time freely and no Director received any remuneration in the
current or prior year. Details of Direciors' remuneration and expenses are disclosed in note 11 of the
financial statements. The pay of the Executive Leadership Team is reviewed annually by the Finance
and PAPP committees in line with the Trust Pay Policy and by raference to published pay scales.

Trade Union Facility Time
Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were| Full time equivalent employee number
relevant union officials during the

relevant period i
12 B 11.75
Percentage of time spent on facility time
Percentage of time i Number of employees
0% - 0.99% i 2
1% - 50% _ : 10
51% - 99% : - 0
100% 0
Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time
| Total pay bill £24 504,000
Total Cost of Facility time £7,712
Percentage of pay spent on facility time 0.04% !

Related Parties and Other Connected Charities and Organisations

Inspire’ Education Trust was established as a standalone company and does not have any external
sponsors, The long-established relationship between Inspire Education Trust and the Coventry
Diocesan Board of Education has continued with Walsgrave C of E Academy and Blue Coat School
entering into a Service Level Agreement to support the schools in continuing to be Excellent Church of
England Schools within a flourishing school's system. This includes but by no means exhaustive, termly
Headteacher termly briefings, RE CPD particularly in light of the new Agreed Syllabus, and SIAMS
updates.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024 (cont'd)

Engagement with Employees (including Disabied Persons)

The Trust values its relationships with staff representatives across all of its schools and central team
recognising the importance of staff feedback to ensure good communications and staff engagement.
Key mechanisms for staff engagement are the joint negotiation and consultation committee, staff
consultation commitiee and wellbeing champions network. These Trust-wide groups provide a wide
cross-section of our staffing population in terms of gender, role, seniority and union membership. Trust
leaders and representatives discuss collective challenges facing our workforce and enforce our
commitment to equality, diversity and inclusion.

Schaal-based employee representative groups and welibeing & workioad forums operate locally to
engage employees in the Trust’s schoals.

The Trust launches an annual staff survey which seeks staff feedback and performance measures in
refation to staff wellbeing, workload and perception of their employer. Trust leaders use this information
to inform strategic employee engagement activities. In Spring 2024 an externally sourced survey was
used which provided comprehensive benchmarking petformance data across thousands of schools. A
summary of results is shared with employees and informs the Trust's wellbeing action plans.

Schoo! leaders undertake briefings with all staff on a regular basis. At the beginning of each academic
year, school and trust leaders will share key performance results with staff including pupils' academic
outcomes.

As set out in the Trust's equality objectives, the eguality and diversily strategic group meets regularly
and comprises of strategic leaders including the Trust's CEQ. The strategic group is respensible for
promoting awareness of equality in our schicols and ensuring all staff are aware of their responsibilities
and are given appropriate training and support. Further details of this can be found in the Trust's annual

equality, diversity and inclusion report.

The Trust's accessibility policies, recruitment and selection policy and egual opportunities and diversity
policy sets out the trust's commitment for the treatment, training, career development ard promotion
of disabled persons. The Trust aims to create a working environment in which all individusls are able
to make best use of their skilis, free from discriminalion or harassment, and in which all decisions are
based on merit.

An occupational health provider is utilised to provide specialist occupational support for employees.
The Trust refers staff for additional support and reasonable recommendations in respect of disabilities
and health conditions where required.

Engagement with Suppliers, Customers and Others in 2 Business Relationship with the Trust
Inspire Education Trust engages with suppliers of goods and services to the Trust on a regulsr basis.
with the aim of building mutually beneficial open, honest, and transparent business relationships o
support commercial decision making and procurement activity. that adhere to the Nolan Principles of
public life.

The main customers and key stakeholders of the Trust are our pupils and parents, Every effort is made
to ensure all pupils receive a consistently high-quality educational experience, above and beyond core
classroom leaming e.g. including exceptional pastoral support and a range of after school clubs and
activities, The Trust supports and engages with parents at every opportunity e.g. via regular parent
evenings, school performances and events, newsletters, electronic communications, as well as the
provision of specialist support where needed. During early summer 2024, a new MIS system was
purchased fo support easier communication with parents — Arbor. This was rolled out during the
summer 2 and autumn terms of 2024.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024 (cont’d)

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES
Objects and Aims
The principal objects of the Trust, as set out in its Articles of Association, are:

a) to advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom, in particular but without
prejudice to the generality of the foregoing by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing,
and developing Academies which shall offer a broad and balanced curriculum and which:

() shall include Church of England Academies designated as such which shall be conducted
in accordance with the principles, practices, and tenets of the Church of England both
generally and in particutar in relation to arranging for religious education and daily acts of
worship, and

(iiy shall include Academies whether with or without a designatad religicus character; but in
relation 10 each of the Academies to recognise and suppert their individual ethos, whether
or not designiated Church of England.

Whare an Academy is designated as or recognised as a Church Academy, in refation to the
ethos and religious ediication provided at the academy the Directors shall have regard to
any advice and foliow any directives {as specified in the DBE Measure) issued by th2
Niocesan Carpoiate Member,

b) to promote for the benefit of the inhabitants of the areas where the Academies are established
and its surrounding area the pravision of facilities for recreation or other leisure time occupation
of individuals who have need of such facilities by reason on their youth, age, infirmity or
disabiement, financial hardship, or social and economic circumstances, or for the public at large
in the interests of social welfare and objects of improving the condition of life of the said
inhabitants.

Qur Vision and Values
Our vision is ambitious and is underpinned by our core Trust values and key priorities.

To be the educator and employer of choice, with a first-ciass education that empowers pupils
to flourish, grow and achieve. Where pupils matter to us as much as their academic success
and with staff who are valued, supported and developed. Together, we will live life in alf iis
fuliness.

We put the quaiity of education at the core of cur vision. Our vision is inspirationat and aspirational, it
makes clear why we exist as an organisation and what we want our pupils and staff to achieve, it aiso
makes clear that we have a distinctively Christian ethos, where all of our schools across the Trust show
respect towards those of othar faiths and beliefs.

Ve want to be recognised as a Trust with outstanding learning opportunities, that raises aspirations to
secure high levels of academic progress for all learners. whilst ensuring equality of opportunity within
a safe and nurturing environment.

We are a progressive Trust with an excellent track record of schos! improvement acress our portfolio
of B schools. We have strong models of school improvement atongside high-guality implementation
and delivery. We have proven able to deliver high standards of education, systematically, through
excellent improvement practice that incorporates knowladge building. evidence-informed professional
developmeni, and the creation of communities of improvement. As a successful Tust we depioy the
expertise of specialist teachers and leaders across our schools (0 ensure maximurm impact.

We also hoid supporting the welibeing of staff and chiidren alike, inclusive of all needs and
backgrounds, building a sense of achieveimenl, resilience and mutual trust.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024 (cont'd)
Our Vision and Values {cont'd)

Our core values drive the way we want to achieve this vision:

OUR TRUST VALUES

LIEVANTHDOD FPAOTHEULHIP 1L LU BT BLRBLLY

Integrity We are open, honest and hiave strong moral principles which we use to guide us.
Nurture We promote positive wellbeing, so all feel safe, cared for and enabled to thrive.
Servanthood We considerately put the needs of others before aut own, recognising that in serving
each other we serve all.

Partnership  We work coliaboratively, recognising we achieve more together than on our own.
Incliusive We are open, honest and have strong moral principles which we use to guide us.
Respect We show care, consideration, and courtesy for ourselves and all around us.
Excellence  We always strive to be better in order to become first class in all we do.

These values are integral to our success, and we ensure that these form the foundation of everything
we do. Qur values drive the behaviour of our leaders and people, and key to achieving this is our culture
of high expectaticns for our colleagues, underpinned by our shared values, where every member of
staff is making their best contribution to their schoot or function.

The vision and values within each of our individual schools also vary, and this very much depends on
the communities they serve and the collective voice of staff. pupils, parents and governors of those
schools. We recognise and respect the individuality of our schools and their communities. In these
communities, we aim to create an atmosphere of trust and understanding in which the sanctity of the
individual is cherished and where the children and adults show consideration, courtesy, and respect
for each other at all times.

in our school communities, we aim to create an atmosphere of trust and understanding in which the
sanctity of the individual is cherishad and where the children and adulis show consideration, courtesy,

and respect for each other at all times.

In January 2024, Arley Primary Academy and Frederick Bird Academy joined Inspire Education Trust.
Both schools had been working alongside Inspire leaders and the School Improvement Team for the
majority of 2023 calendar year. We are excited to confinue to see how this partnership grows and
develops for the children and families of those communities.

OBJECTIVES, STRATEGIES AND ACTIVITIES

Trust Strategic Development plan
The Inspire Strategic Development Plan is a collection of key strategies that we will deliver in order for

us, as an organisation, to meet our Vision.

it is built upon the key constituents of the CST Assurance Framework — Building Strong Trusts (June
2023) and the DfE’s Trust Quality Descriptions (July 2023) which inciude strategic governance, high
quality inclusive school improvement, workforce resilience and wellbeing, expert ethical leadership,
finance and operations, and public benefit and civic duty,
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024 (cont’d)

Trust Strategic Development plan {cont’d}
The Inspire development plan consists of the following key strategies:

1. High Quality Inclusive School Improvement
Creating and delivering a high-quality, inclusive school improvement which integrates best
practices in education with the specific values and ethos of the church. These will be specific to our
wide-ranging contexts but will have sirands of similarity throughout all.

a)

b)

d)

f)

g)

Shared Vision Rooted in Faith-Based Values

s A shared vision that reflects both educational excellence and the church's commiiment to
inclusivity, compassion, and community.

« Our vision is not only communicated clearly but also ratlectad in all policies, practices, and
interactions acrass schoals in the MAT.

Strong Leadership and Governance

» leaders that are empowered at every level to advooate for inclusive practices whilke
upholding high standards.

«  Governors and trustees who prioritise inclusion and diversity in their oversight. ensuring
policies reflect these values and are regularly monitored.

« leadership development encouraged through internalf external progranyvnes that foster
inclusive leadership.

Inclusive Curriculum and Instructional Practices

= A fully bespoke Trust curricula from EYFS to KS5 which respects and celebrates diversity,
while aligning with both national standards and the church's teachings, particularly within
our CE schools.

« The promotion of instructional practices that are differentlated io meet the needs of all
students, including those with special educational needs and disabilities (SEND).

Data-Driven Improvement Focused on Equity

+ Regular analysis of data on student performance, attendance, and well-being to identify and
address disparities.

+ Data used io set ambitious but achievable goals that ensure every student. regardless of
background, can succeed.

« A culture where schools regularly share data and improvement practices within the MAT.

Whole-Child Development and Wellbeing

« Programs implemented that supporl students’ spiritual, moral, social, and cultural
development in line with church values. '

= Mental health and emotional well-being prioritised to address the diverse needs of all
students. For example, through the Thrive Approach,

» Pastoral care that supports inclusive practices, such as peer mentoring.

Community Engagemeni and Parental Involvement

« Active enpagement of parents, carers, and the broader community in the school
imorovement process.

o Offer family programimes that supports personal davelopment within and beyond the school
gates.

+ At Walsgrave and Blue Coat CE, build partnerships with local faith-based organisations and
other resources to support inclusion and community service.

Ongoing Professional Development and Support for Staff

« Staff have access to ongoing training focused on developing needs such as relational
behaviour approaches and inclusive practices within the classroom.

« Networks within the MAT for staff to share best practices and challenges.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 231 AUGUST 2024 (cont'd)
Trust Strategic Development plan (cont’d)

h) Continuous Monitering and Reflection
« Systems for continuous monitoring and evaiuation and effectiveness of school improvement
practices.
» Regular feedback gathered from students, staff, and parents to assess the success of
initiatives.
s Adjustment of strategies to respond to evolving needs, ensuring the MAT's school
improvement approach remains effective.

2. Peopie

The best trusts are excellent employers, with a focus on workforce skills, resilience, and
wellbeing. We endeavour to ensure that through a robust People Strategy all cur staff are cared
for, supported, and developed via a comprehensive programme of CPD. This is underpinned by
our vision to be the employer of choice, with a relentless pursuit towards thriving schools, through
thriving individuals, being imperative to our success. In Inspire we recognise that if as an
organisation, we are to build sustainable infrastructures to lead change, improve schools and
respond to the legacies of the pandemic, then we must value our people.

The strongest trusts understand their responsibilities and duties as employers — they are good
employers. They recruit, develop, deploy, and retain great teachers, support staff and leaders
throughout their careers, supporting their development by using evidence-informed professional
development and ensuring a manageable work-life balance, paying close attention to wellbeing.
We believe this at Inspire and this forms the bedrock of our Pecpie Strategy to become the
employer of cheice.

We value committed, reflective staff who challenge themselves to be creative, and take appropriate
risks, enabling cutstanding performance. Our leaders know how to create the conditions and the
culture which empower staff to thrive, recognising that thriving working environments lead to the
best learning environments.

For our staff we aim for the following:

Professional growth and development

Creating a culture and community of improvement for all professionals across our schools,
designed using the ‘active ingredients’ of professional development. Professional connections are
not left to chance, or undermined by competing priorities. but rather hard wired into our schools for
the benefit of all staff. Support and admin staff also work in this way.

Deep and purposeful collaboration
Our scheols support one another to maintain high educational standards.

A continuous focus on health and wellbeing

Line management ied conversations around health and wellbeing are encouraged. Regular staff
wellbeing surveys inform our practice and 2 network of wellbeing champions in our schools ensure
that best practice is shared and developed.

A comprehensive programme of benefils and rewards

An employee assistance programme is available for ali staff along with an employee benefits offer
provided through Vivup. This is our cnline benefits piatform where employees can take advantage
of discounts and a cycle to work scheme.

A culture which is diverse respectful and inclusive

We monitor our staff equality and diversity data, which is reported to the Executive Leadership
Team and our Beard, and we report on our gender pay gaps and action plan accordingly. We have
successful staff networks which feeds back from staff to leadership.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024 (cont'd)
Trust Strategic Development plan {cont’d)

3. Robust finance management,

To deliver insightful transparent financial reporting, driving value for money through rigorous
procurement and monitoring of our goods and services. We know that the best trusts are efficient
and effective at reinvesting funding to improve the quality of education and we ensure that ‘today's
money is spent on today’s children’. To provide short and long-term financial planning,
penchimarking, and robust financial systems within an up-to-date integrated control framework. In
this financial year the Trust benefitted from a School Resource Management review (SRM) offered
from the DfE which proved useful in identifying future initiatives to enable us to become more cost
efficient.

4. Expert Governance
Strategic governance is one of the defining characteristics of Trusts. By operating under a single
governance structure, a2 strong board of academy Directors can effectively oversee the strategic
direction of the Trust and hold executive leaders to account for the outcomes of all pupils within the
Trust.

At Inspire we know the vital elements for successful governance include strategic leadership,
accountability; recruiting people with the right skills; good structures; compliance, and evaluation.
These elements form the key areas of our governance development plan. It strongly emphasises
the need for a Trust Board to be robust and capable of holding the executive leaders to account for
delivering the Trust's strategic plan, with the right leve! of delegation which is clearly documented
and communicated.

Strong governance of the legal entity of the Trust hardwires collaboration and shared accountabiity.
At Inspire we offer a comprehensive programme of training for our governors and Directors e.4.
offering intense training and buddying with experienced leaders/ governors. Facilitating developing
training and practice wider than own school.

Directors receive regular performance reporis from each of the subcommittees and at the main
Board which can be assessed against the agreed Key Performance Indicators. This forms the basis
of robust check, support and challenge which helps to resource plan and further develop all key
areas of the Trust.

5. Stakeholder Engagement
At Inspire we recognise that the primary focus on education quality is necessary but net sufficient
by itself. Education has wider purpose in intellectual, social, and cultural development; the
farmation of character; and helping pupils to understand and play a role in scciely and contribute
to the wider common good. As we are, we need to be explicit in our commitment to creating the
right congditions for human flourishing.

As a legai entity, which is independent from local government, we have a wider civic responsibility
to advance education for the public good in the communities we serve. At Inspire Education Trust,
we work in partnership, within our local communities and with our wider stakeholders such as LAs
and ather Trusts to serve the best interests of all of our children.

Through increasing our status via exciting and engaging networks and partnerships, moving us 1o
be welcomed by our presence at and within key networks with improved stakeholder engagement
connected to our [T Strategy will enable us to ensure that we are meeting our civic responsibilities.

During 2023-24 academic year, Trust and school leaders have been visible at a range of events
including Open Evenings, Trust Stakeholder Feedback Meetings (Arley & Frederick Bird) and
schoo! productions. This will continue to be a focus within 2024-25 academic year.

Our school leaders ensure this aspect of serving our communities is prioritised, and work very
slosely with Pastoral Teams to keep innovating our nractice in line with the ever-changing financia
landscane for the children and families we serve
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024 (cont’d)
Trust Strategic Development plan {cont'd)

5. Stakeholder Engagement (cont'd)
The schools in our Trust serve different communities, so the ways in which we engage our
communities and forge strong relationships with our parent communities varies. For example, at
Stockingford Academy, research has shown that our families have high engagement with various
Social Media platforms. At Walsgrave families enjoy coming into a range of school events on site
during the school day and in the evening. At Arley the PTA arrange many community events which
are well attended. The Headteacher at Arley has been keen to harness this parental engagement
to upskill parents/ carers in how best to support their children educationally which has worked well,

Over time, these nuance ways of responding to individual schoot communities has led to improved
attendance at Parents Evenings, school productions and other school celebrations such as fetes

or fayres,

6. Trust Growth
Qur extended partnerships really grew stronger during 2023-24 academic year. As a resuft of a
successful period of school-to-school support, both Arley and Frederick Bird fully academised with
Inspire Education Trust on 12 January 2024, This was down to the hard work and commitment of
schooi/ Trust leaders, and local Governors and Directors who all fostered strong professionat
relationships to improve each school offer.

Objects and aims
In setting the Strategic Framework for the Trust objectives and planning activities, the Direciors

have considered ensuring compliance with the Charity Commissions general guidance on public
benefit. The activities undertaken to further the Trust's public benefit are:

(i) The Trust aims to advance, for the public benefit, education in Coventry, Warwickshire, and
the surrounding area. In particular, but without prejudice to the generality of the forgeing by
maintaining, managing, and developing scheols and offering a broad curricuium to all its
puplle and in the case of Walsgrave C of E and Blue Coat Schoals within a distinctively
Christian context.

(i) The Trust also provides opportunities for children, their parents, and the local communities
that it serves through a range of extra-curricular activities and opportunities.

(iii) Inspire Education Trust is working to support all of the academies within the Trust and to
sustain a culture of mutual support and development acrose these academies. The
commitment ic developirg a high-quality curriculum, delivered by well trained and effective
teaching and support staff, and the sharing of expertise is at the heart of the Trust's vision
and its deveiopment.

The details of the particular activities of the Trust during the year and how these have provided public
benefit are detailed in the Achievements and Performance section below.

ACHIEVEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE

School Improvement

Collaboration ‘
We were really pleased with extremely successful Ofsted inspection autcomes during 2023-24
academic year. Stockingford received 2 graded inspection and was judged to be a ‘Good’ school
celebrating the very best of what the staff team do for their children and wider community each and
every day. The school had been judged inadequate in the last inspection in September 2018 and before
that had been Requires improvernent/ Satisfactory for the previous 5 years.

Whittle Academy had an ungraded inspection and maintained its ‘Good’ status. In both cases the
school and central school improvement teams had worked in tandem with school staff to ensure the

very best provision was in place.
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Coflaboration (cont’d)

Headleachers, Senior Leaders and class teachers continued to work tegether in partnership during
2023-24 acadermic year. Ongoing curriculum development was 2 key part of our school improvement
work with individual school team members feeding into our Thematic curriculum review, History,
Geography, Music, Art & Design and Design Technology have been re-planned to move to @ one-year
operating model. Subject experts from within the Trust (both primary and secondary) have been
complimented by using an external consultant. Further work on this will be carried out in 2024-25
acadernic year with all curriculum changes coming into effect by September 2025,

Cueing the summer term, strategic leads from primary and secondary have been identified to develop
deeper working partnership and support school improvement between these phases. The areas were
initially prioritised: Safeguarding, Attendance, SEND. Pupil Premium, EAL. Asgessment & data. [TT.
ECT and Parsonal Development. An exaraple of how this has benefited pupils across our schools is
the work that cross-phase leads have completed considering D attendance policy changes. The
second phases of this will be forging deeper working relationships between Heads of Departments and
Primary Strategic Subject Leaders in 2024-25.

Additionad spend budget bids were pul togethar during summer 2024 to enable the following leads 1o
develop their arca of responsibility. The Trust Board Standards’ Corniitee recommended that the
foliowing aveas should access additional money from reserves to enable these developments.

(1) EYFS Outdoor Provision £50,000
(2) IT Development £30.000
{3) Thematic Curriculum Development £10.000
(4) Thematic Curriculum Resourcing £15,000
(5) Reading Book Refresh £15,000

Our training base at Hearsall Community Academy was complimented & another training space at
Frederick Bird Academy. This allows

During 2023-24 academic year the Church of England continued to ask us 1o lead some of the national
NPQLT training and were chosen to support the NPQ Flex model. Leaders collaborate across key
areas of curriculum, leadership, behaviour and attitudes and personal development and welibeing.

Collaboration Across the City and Beyond

All the primaries belong to networks within the city - Aspire & Potential - and have accessed some
great CPD from Wayne Harris attendance development to Walk Thrus with Tom Sherrington.

Blue Coat, as the sole secondary schoo! in the Trust, continues to work in collaborative partnerships
across the city with other schools as part of the Secondary Networks and also with the Castle Phoenix,
Sidney Stringer, and Futures Trusts as the legacy Teaching School Alliances. They are strategic
partners in the Lawrence Sheriff/Griffin Alliance Teaching School Hub and work alongside them and
University College London on the ECT programme. Blue Coat provide the subject support for numerous
programmes at Warwick University and are also a partner of the Coventry SCITT,

Leadership & Management: Primary

Our educational leaders/ headteachers operate as one team, providing expertise in a range of different
areas to utilise the very best talent to drive improvements across our academies. There are regular
opportunities for all our education leaders to come together and learn from experts in their field through
half termly Heads Briefings. External specialists are commissioned as and when needed to compliment
the internal Teaching & Learning and Headteacher team. During 2023-24 we have worked with a
serving Ofsted inspector to ensure our schools and leaders have been fully equipped for external
scrutiny. Two Trust senior leaders have completed the National Professional Qualification for Executive
Leadership (NPQEL) with a large proportion of school-based leaders currently compieting National
Professional Qualification for Senior Leadership (NPQSL)



INSPIRE EDUCATION TRUST 14

DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024 (cont'd)

Leadership & Management including Governors: Secondary

The leadership teamn at Biue Coat Schoo! continues to be effective, supported by a full complement of
Governors and an experienced Chair. With the Headteacher gaining external promotion, the Associate
Headteacher has been promoted to substantive Headteacher from September 2024, A number of
internal secondments have been put in place to give additional leadership capacity during this period
of change. This has been a great opportunity to promote from the talented team within.

Leadership & Management including Governors: Trust Wide

Local governors across the Trust are clear about their responsibilities for monitoring and scrutinising
all aspects of the academy’s work and academy leaders feel supported by governors. A range of cross-
phase governor training was offered during 2023-24 academic year including 'How to Effectively
Challenge and Support through LGC Meetings and Governor Visits'.

The Quality of Education including Curriculum & Pedagogy & The Early Years - Primary

Many primary Trust curriculum and provision aspecis have been updated in line with the 2023-24 Trust
Primary Development Strategy. This has included: a rewritten Online Safety curriculum — reviewed
against Keeping Children Safe in Education 2023; new Relational Behaviour Policy; and Thematic
curriculum review and development.

The Quality of Education including Curriculum & Pedagogy & The Early Years — Primary {cont'd)
We have continued to develop our curriculum subject netwarks to support the Trusf's curriculum
principles and aim to support high quality curricuium planning and, most importantly, delivery in each
academy and classroom. Network groups share resources, pianning and pedagogy, with many
subjects now alsc having regular professional development meetings. Our manitra is that no subject
leader is left isolated or without support.

The Quality of Education including Curriculum & Pedagogy Secondary

Biue Coat has a broad, balanced, and ambitious curriculum in place for all students which enables
them 1o live out our vision of ‘Lie in all its fullness’. The curriculum at Key Stage 3 continues to be
carefully sequenced to stipport students to develop thair knowledge, skills and understanding over a
three-year period. This then serves as the foundation for a successful Key Stage 4 curriculum and in
turn a seamless transition into Key Stage 5 where desired and appropriate. Resulis at the end of KS4
and K85 continued to be strong and saw year-on-year improvements from outcomes in 2023.

Safeguarding

Governors and Directors were invited to generic Safeguarding training at the start of the year. All staff
attend Safeguarding training on the first Teacher Day of the year. This is also part of the indiction
process for mid-year starters. Whole staff training for specific Safeguarding elements takes place
across our schools throughoit the year, supported by reguiar communications for staff and pupils
where appropriate for areas such as FGM, E-Safety, Cyber security, ete.

CPOMS is used consistently across the MAT and has greatly improved our systems. Staff report
increased confidence in this area. Safeguarding leads and Trust senicr leaders attend Local Authority

termiy updates.

During the summer term 2024, the Executive Leadership Team, Headteachers and our Link
Safeguarding Director developed a revised Safeguarding Compliance Report to ensure the Trust has
the very best practice and oversight of this key area. This report includes capiuring whole Trust annual
training and policy/ guidance reading in line with Keeping Children Safe in Education; associated
training including for example, Prevent, Online Safety and Safer Recruitment; pelicy and curriculum
updates; ongoing reporting and checks completed by Executive Leadership Team, iLocal Governors
and Trust Directors; and key next steps.
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Distinctively Christian Schools/ SIAMS

Blue Coat CE continues to lead the way in promoting the very best distinctively Christian education
whilst celebrating and reflecting ali faiths, A senior leader at Blue Coat has become a national SIAMS
inspecior as well as a lead RE facilitator for Coventry & Warwickshire Agreed Syllabus. Qur CofE
Primary school, Walsgrave also benefits from this knowledge and expertise. The newly appointed
Depuly Director of Diocesan Education Georgina Newton has visited both schools adding to the already
beneficial and well established links developed by the Diocesan Director April Geld, and thoroughly
enjayed seeing everything that enables our schools 1o flotrish.

A5 3 church of England majority articles Trusi, we wers delighted to support the Church of England
vision for a flounshing school system with the publication of The Church of Engiand's Vision for
Education, '‘Deeply Christian, Serving the Common Goaod', published in 2023, which sets out the core
principles that underpin our commitment to education. This vision has anchored and underpinned all
of our collective work since then. it will do so for years to come as we continue to play owr role in
serving the children, young people, families and communities of this region through our schools.

The concentric circles of this model
opposite, are intended to show that the
e S 1y school's system should choose to place

children at the heart of all decision-making
g and resourcing. As we move outwards the
model shows that flourishing adulis in

flourishing schools are crucial to this
instinetive prioritisation of young people.
Moving further outwards, we recognise
that school to school partnerships will
come in a variety of forms according to
governance arrangements in focal schools
and the strategies of Diocesan Boards of
Education,

School trusts can only flourish in strong
strategic partnerships with flourishing
dioceses, which are themselves
committed to placing education at the
heart of their wider diocesan vision. This is
why we are proud to support and work
closely with the Diocese of Coventry and all of our stakeholders as we flourish together.

Wider Trust Central Team and School improvement

Throughout the year the Trust has continued to develop its central operating model (Finance, HR, IT
and Estates) these teams are now being developed to offer and build a cohesive support services
function for our schools that is enabling Headteachers to concentrate on pupil learning and outcomes.
These cross-Trust roles have had a positive impact not only on teaching and learning, but for every
aspect of our schools, ensuring Trust effectiveness and efficiency with consistency of expectations,
clear procedures and systems supporting school improvement at every level.

The Executive Leadership Team meet on a weekly basis to discuss prioriies, operations and agree
refevant actions to support all school improvement work.
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Wider Trust Central Team and School Improvement

Arley

Over the past vear Arley has made significant strides in enhancing their educational practices,
particularly in the realms of teaching and learning. Their primary focus has been on introducing the
mathematics and English curriculum to ensure that these not only engage all students but also present
appropriate challenges. To facilitate this, they have implemented English and mathematics toolkits
designed for teachers, enabling them to create a cohesive sequence of teaching that is tailored to the
diverse needs of all learners.

In pursuit of improvement in mathematics, they have adopted a mastery approach that spans the entire
school. Investments have been made in acquiring manipulatives, which serve as essentiat resources
that allow every student to engage meaningfully with mathematical concepts. This hands-on approach
is intended to foster a deeper understanding of mathematics, ensuring that all children can access and
benefit from the learning opportunities provided. In English, they have fully adopted the Inspire
curriculum, which significantly promotes language development and essential vocabulary while
instilling a passion for learning amongst the children. The introduction of the inspire curriculum has
been pivotal, featuring fabulous texts that serve as an engaging entry point. They have also invested
in books; both in the school library and for children to take home. There has been a large amount of
time spent on an enhanced a passion for reading and they hope to continue this next year.

Additionally, Arley have rolied out a thematic curriculum that emphasises engagement, curiosity, and
depth of understanding. The Early Years curmiculum too has also seen remarkable growth, with a
continuous provision that is responsive to the needs of our chiidren, ensuring that they are consistently
challenged in accordance with their academic and social capabilities.

Clifford Bridge Academy

improving teaching and learning by encouraging all staff to become reflective practitioners has been a
key focus for the school year. In the autumn term, they launched IRIS connect (video technology to
record live taaching). Throughout the year, all practitioners were allocated time to record a small
component of their iesson, and work collaboratively with colleagues to share best practice and discuss
ways to improve further. Teachers have continued to use WALKTHRUSs which have allowed staff to
teel confident to trial new and tested approaches and offered a platform for open discussions around
self-reflection and improvement.

A CPD overview has been well-planned and adapted to ensure bespoke provision for CB staff based

around the priorities most pertinent to the school. This has included a huge body of work conducted to

upskill subject leaders with the goal of enabling all leaders to not oniy be an enthusiastic champion for

thelr subject. but to further articulate, review and deliver the curriculum o a high standard. Reguiar
subject deep dives with subject leaders and SLT have been instrumental in building confident and

knowiedgeabdle leaders. In addition, the school has honed in closely on the importance of recegnising

where British Values and SMSC characteristics are taught within each curriculum subject. Leaders

worked together fo ensure that coverage of these areas is evident across the entire curriculum.

The EYFS have raceived a significant level of CPD, reflecting the enthusiasm and dedication of the
phase. Reception sitended Karen Wilding maths training and introduced NCTEM leading fo strong
outcomes in maths. Staff attended highly inspirational CPD led by Greg Boitrill and began a new
vocabulary and early writing programme named Drawing Club. This has been well received by staff
and pupils alike, with their youngest writers showing enthusiasm and engagement for writing alongside
improvements with their handwriting speed and stamina.

Enrichment opportunities have continued to improve and grow, as they now offer a range of clubs for
all year groups to meet a plethora of different interests. The school has purposefully ensured that
100% of pupil premium and SEND children have been offered a place in a lunchtime or afterschool
club that may interest them, with mest taking up this offer.
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Clifford Bridge Academy {cont'd)

Music continues to be a beacon of strength for Clifford Bridge, with training conducted to upskill staff
to feel empowered to deliver high quality music lessons regardless of their subject expertise. Thier
music alumni (many of which performed this summer at the Godiva Festival) return year after year to
fake part in the schoofs annual Night of Rock and Music Extravaganza and demonstrate the jong-
lasting impact that is being had on our future musicians.

Frederick Bird Academy

In the 2023-24 academic year, the school has placed a strong emphasis on embedding English, Maths,
and Science across Years 1-8. This has been achieved through a clear and effective teaching strategy
communicated via weekly planning monitoting. and feedback. Regular learning walks, termly lesson
observations, and book/evidence trawls have ensured that teaching prachices remain effective and
aligned with their educational goals.

A robust whole-school weekly CPD offer has been highlighted as a strength in the most recent staff
survey. The school has pravided continuous support for staff to enhance their teaching meathaods
through targeted CPD sessions and collaborative planning.

The launch of the Theme Curriculum in September 2023 has been successful in helping both children
and staff understand the individual subject knowledge and skills being faught. Early indicators have
shown that this inftiative has had a positive start, with evidence of good practice that can be shared
across the schoaol.

Effective curriculum pilanning has been a cornerstone of the schools approach, ensuring that all lessons
are weli-structured and meet the diverse needs of our childran.

The EYFS phase has seen the successful implerentation of & new phonics scheme and aceess (o
‘Drawing Club’ training. These initiatives have been integrated into the plans where suitable, supporting
children in engaging with drawing and writing activities.

The development of the Children's Leadership Team has been a notable success. The Eco Council
has shown great enthusiasm in promoting ethical behaviour to supper the environment, both within
the school and the wider community. They have been eager fo share their achievements and have
exciting plans for future projects.

The School Council members have embraced their roles with pride, understanding their responsibilities
as representatives of their peers. Their engagement has bean commendable.

Frederick Bird's enrichment experiences, fully funded to ensure accessibility, have allowed children to
engage with a rich curriculum. A wide range of after-school clubs, offered free of charge, provides
diverse experiences for all students. Additionally, residential trips are subsidized by 50%, making them
affordable for our school community,

Parental involvement has been actively encouraged, with increased attendance at school events and
meetings since January 2024, reflecting a supportive and valued school community.

Hearsaill Community Academy

Hearsall has definitely overcome many challenges cver the last academic year. Urgent repairs on the
building have resulted in 5 displaced classrooms, no Early Years outdoor environment due to
scaffolding and half of one playground as a buildings compound. Despite these setbacks, Hearsall
has celebrated achievements through the year. A brand new library was launched which is tailored to
meet the needs of Hearsall pupils and was highly commended by Ann Davey (external
consultant}. The library is now in full use and has been a platform to relaunch and promote reading for
pleasure.
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Hearsall Community Academy (cont'd)

The start of Autumn term 24 has also seen the completion of the ERP project. The Enhanced Resource
Provision (ERP Ladybirds) will taunch during Autumn term with a fransition of 10 pupils from across
the city to a bespoke SEND base. Hearsall was identified as having highly inclusive practice by the LA
and this project is now In completion. Nursery has been completely renovated and repurposing of
rooms to make the provision more modern with all new facilities across the whole wing of the
building. We know this will be a positive addition to the school and will continue to raise our profite in
the community. Hearsall staris the new academic year with a strong teaching profile and a focus on
our Ofsted year.

Stockingford Academy

In January 2024 Stockingford Academy was inspected by Ofsted and achieved a judgement of ‘Good’
in all areas. This represents the highest inspection outcome since becoming a primary school and ig a
testament to the hard work and dedication of the whale school teamn. The highlights of the report include
the strong sense of staff team spirit and how much children love their school. Furthermore, the areas
of inclusion and pastoral care were identified as being strengths.

Attainment on entry to the school remains exceptionally low and, whilst progress across the school has
improved as a result of a much-improved teaching profile, attainment at statutory points remains lower
than National averages. This is due to a number of facters including: the high levels of pupils with
additional needs (now identified as the most complex school community in Warwickshire); the overlap
between SEND and levels of disadvantage; and a level of transience (including many children arriving
with fittle or no English) which is a greater problem than it has been historically.

Post-inspection, the focus will be on maintaining standards and consistency of approach whilst
welcoming new staff and leaders who will take the school on the next stage of its journey.

Walsgrave C of E Academy

During the 2023-2024 academic year, there were a number of successes and developments at
Walsgrave. During the year, the trusts new Relational Behaviour Policy was implemented and
personalised for the schoal, this included the introduction of the Zones of Regulation that has been
articulated well by children and staff. This has complimented the strong pastoral work that has
continued to be a strength of the school. The new approach to Maths has been embedded quickly, with
Mastery at the heart of it, with the impact seen in end of year data at both the expected standard and
greater depth- this was particularly evident in our year 6 SATs results, with 88%of children reaching
the expected standard and 32% at Greater Depth- both significantly above national. Phonics and
Multiplication check data was also impressive with 93% passing the phonics check and 61% of children
achieving full marks in the Multiplication check compared to the national average of 32%. Away from
the classroom, we still strive to be a central hub for the community, leading on new initiatives like our
social supermarket, clothing collection bins and hosting a number of whole school events, always
incredibly well attended by our school community. Overall, our children continue to flourish at
Walsgrave as all staff sirive to live our school vision of 'Together we Thrive'.

Whittle Academy

In February 2024, Whitile Academy had a visit from Ofsted and we are proud to have sustained a
GOOD outcome reflecting the hard work of staff in school and celebrating the support of the wider
Trust team. Our ethos of CARE is one that underpins all that we do and Ofsted picked up on haw well
this is embedded. Our Inclusive practice was also praised recognising the successful development of
our new ERP provision and our belief that all children will achieve — something we state in our Vision
Statement. Our well-structured curriculum and way we adapt this to meet the needs of all of our
children was also praised within the report — something else that we are extremely proud of.
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Whittle Academy (cont”d)

Since our inspection, we have worked hard to take on board advice to continue to improve our reading
provision and have already developed a reading spine of rich texis io support our teaching of reading
in Key Stage Two and reviewed the opportunities for developing children's Buency within our lesson
sequence. At the moment, we are trialing creative approaches to provision mapping to upskiil a central
group of our TAs to support our children with SEND needs across the school. This is in its infancy but
is an excifing project. We are also developing our links with Walsgrave Academy and working together
io develop joind professional development and manitoring activities. This parinership is aimed at giving
stafi from our smaller schodl the opporunity to engage in professional dialogue with colleaguas bt wili
also support workload for siaff in both schaols.

Blue Coat School
Following our fabulous OFSTED from May 2023 whore wa received 3 Ouistanding judgements. the
school has focused on the identified areas for improvement which were:-

» Punctuality to lessons — we have implemented new systems for students late to lessons and
school. Visually punctuatity is better during the day and lateness to school has reduced by more
than half. The school continues to work closely with families of persistently absent students,
new pastoral reports have been developed and procedures developed in line with LA guidance
along with the autemation of achievement points for 100% attendance.

s Further precision was required in planned assessment opportunities 10 enable teachers to
check pupil understanding in lessons — A whaole school assessment policy and practice has
been developed which systematically checks the level of understanding within {he classroom
and at identified curriculum points before moving on to new content, Leadership learning walk
analysis supports the positive implementation of this approach.

Blue Coat students excelled in their GCSE examinations in 2024. With nearly two thousand GCSEs
taken, over 28% of these grades were achieved at Grade 7 or above which is significantly higher than
the national average. Whilst the most able students performed exceptionally well, over 76% of students
passed both their English and Maths GCSEs at Grade 4, which is again significantly above national
average and maintains the strong GCSE results profile of previous years. However, the significant
success was the grade 5 pass in English and Maths, which increased by 6.5% to 54.5% giving the
students access to many more opportunities Post 16.

The, pre published progress score is positive ‘at 0.31' which demonstrates that Blue Coat students
have performed 'significantly’ better than the national average. These figures may be adjusted with
the published results in November.

At Key Stage 5 the results were similarly impressive; for all Year 13 students. As one of the largest
and most inclusive sixth forms in the city with over 520 entries, results remained strong overall with a
further in year increase in A*-A grades by 3% at 15.4% and A* grades at 8.5% this sits us at the top
centre in Coventry for these highest grades. The even more significant area of achievement was A*-
B, up 10% on last year to 49.7% allowing even more pupils to access to their first choice destination
and University choice.

We were delighted to welcome guests to Biue Coat in November to officially open our new 6" form
building, this was a great event covered across many media outlets. The official naming ceremony was
held in Spring with The Rt Revd Rose Hudson-Wilkin, in attendance whom the building is named
after. Bishop Rose is the first black women to become a Church of Engiand Bishop, so the school felt
naming the building after her would be entirely appropriate for the school community as other Blue
Coat buildings are named after previous Bishops of Coventry. This was also an important event in the
spiritual life of the school as well as the impact that the new facilities have had on learning.

In addition to the promotion of the distinctively Christian education delivered at the school (page 15),
our vision of living life in all its fullness is richly celebrated across all areas of school with celebrating
Black history month performances, creative bible clubs, environment and culture days, integrity
assemblies, interfaith week, LGBTQ+ ard Pride clubs and # community iftar to name but a few.
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Key Performance Indicators
The Trust uses a number of benchmarks or performance indicators to evaluate its financial

performance and drive budgetary control and monitoring.

A key financial performance indicator for the Trust is the level of reserves held at the balance sheet
date and, in particular, the amount of unrestricted reserves plus restricted income reserves at year-
end. At 31 August 2024, the balance of the unrestricted and resfricted income reserves was £2,414k
(2023: £1,622K), which is after transfers of £246k to the restricted fixed asset fund to fund capital
expenditure during the year. Further details on the level of reserves held by the Trust are set outin the
Reserves Policy section below.

As the majority of the Trust's funding is based on pupil numbers, pupil numbers are also a key
performance indicator. The pupil numbers at the May 2024 census are included on page 5.

Staffing costs are another key performance indicator for the Trust and the percentage of total staff
costs to fotal educational grant funding (being GAG funding plus other operating educational grants
from the ESFA and / or Local Authority) for the year was 84% (2023: 87%), while the percentage of
staff costs to total costs (excluding depreciation and LGPS FRS102 pension cost charges) was 81%
(2023: 83%).

Going Concern

Cash flow forecasts up to twelve months ahead form part of the monthly management accounts which
are monitored by Directors and discussed in haif-termly Finance and Audit Committee meetings. This
ensures that the academy has sufficiert funds available to pay for day-to-day operations. Through the
submission of this forecast together with the rigor on the three-year budget pians the Directors have a
reasonable expectation that the Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future.

Directors are fully aware of the financial pressures being faced by the education sector and how,
fogether with other economic factors the country is facing. For exampie, the Trust adopts the
recommendations of the School Teachers’ Pay and Conditions Document (STPCD) and alsc the
nationally agreed pay awards for support staff. Conseguently, any unfunded pay awards, potentially
has a significant impact of the Trust's budgetary position e.g. if awards are greater than budgeted.

Although Directors are aware that in the short to medium term there are sufficient reserves held by the
Trust, these could very quickly be diminished without detailed robust action plans and financial control
procedures to manage and monitor operating costs when operating in such a dynamic secior. For this
reason, Directars continue ta adopt the going concern basis in preparing financial statements. Further
details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting
Policies within the financial statements.

Promoting the Success of the Trust

The Directors have acted in the way which they consider, in good faith, piromotes the success of the
Trust for the benefit of its pupils and their parents, the Department for Education and the Education
and Skills Funding Agency as principal funders and reguiators, its suppliers and local wider school
community as a whole, and in doing so have given regard to (amongst other matters):

Equality, Diversity and Inclusion

Alongside this Annual report we are proud to share our Equality, Diversity and Inclusion annual report
for 23/24 which details our aspirations, commitment and actions to ensure our whole community is a
stimulated and supportive environment for all pupils and staff, distinguished by a commitment to high
standard and respect for the individual.
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Equality, Diversity and Inclusion {conf’d)

Our commitment to equalily, diversity and inclusivity remains a Trust and business priority. Through
engaging, motivating and valuing our employees and students, we strive to maintain organisational
success by fostering innovation, promoting teamwork and supporting each other during difficult times.
The Trust wholeheartedly suppori the principles of equality, diversity and inclusivity and opposes all
forms of unlawful or unfair discrirnination on any grounds. We are committed to recognising and actively
promoting EDI within our community. YWe aim to provide a working and fearning environment that
acknowledges the richness of diversity and recognises the positive contributions of all peopla,
regardiess of race, gender, age, disability, sexual orientation, religion or any other protected
characteristic.

The Trust seeks to ensure equality of opportunify and treatment for everyone in relation to all of iis
activities, such as recruitment and employment of staff, consultants and contractors, the provision of
educational opportunities and the provision of training and other services fo individuals. The Trust will
work actively towards eliminating discrimination, harassment, bullying and any other conduct prohibited
by the Equality Act, The Trust recognises the existence of institutionalised discrimination, including
institutional racism, and is committed to making changes in any Trust practice where there is evidence
of failure to provide an appropriate and professional service. We are committed to closing equality gaps
in relation to pupil oulcomes, employment issues and engagement in enrichment activities. Our
Equality Duty reflects the broad range of issues connected with the Trust's mission Together we
achieve. individually we grow' leading our community in providing aspirational learning and pathways
for progression.

Some of the ways in which the Trust promotes equality include:

e Embedding equality into our curriculum and extra-cusricular activities, tutor pariods, assemblies

and training

Decision-making through an EDI lens

Staff and pupil engagement i community support activities and charity fundraising

Pupil enrichment programmes which cover a range of strands including EDI

Qur SEND and pastoral teams provide a wide range of support for pupils with learning difficulties

or disabilities, or who need help to overcome barriers to their participation or success

An entitierment to request the provision of facililies for example for prayer or parenting needs

» Family-friendly policies to support staff needs including: Flexible working, job sharing, leave of
absence, parentai and adoption leave.

= Working with and afongside unions

« Data is collected as part of the KPI's reported to Director Sub Committees

Our educational business relationships and community

With a highly committed and dedicated workforce, the Trust takes great pride in listening to

what our pupils, parents and local community want and continues to provide the level of education
outcomes and results that they have come to expect. We do this through our regular school
communications and stakeholder surveys. All governor bodies with senior schools’ leaders throughout
2023/24 are alsoc undertaking stakeholder engagement analysis so they fully understand all of their
stakeholders, what they want from our schools and how best we can communicate with them. The
Trust continues to evolve and to adapt to the ever-changing educational environment, leading to the
continued increase in the awareness of the Trust’s overall activities and educational performance.

As an educational focused charitable organisation, public benefit is also at the heart of all we do. The
details in the "Objectives and Activities” and “Achievements and Performance” section of the Directors’
report above provide full details of the impact of our activities and our achievements for the year.

With respect to suppliers, the Trust's policy for the payment of suppliers is to agree to terms of payment
in advance in line with normal commercial practices and, provided a supplier performs in accordance
with the agreement, to abide by such terms.
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Our educational business relationships and community {cont’d)

The Trust is also committed to contributing towards combating the threat of global warming by using
energy efficient measures to reduce CO2 emissions throughout its buildings, facilities, and operations.
Our ESOS Action plan and environmental strategy support the plans we are endeavouring to
implement to support this very important area.

Our stakeholders

In additional to our pupils, parents, suppliers and wider local communities, the Directors also recognise
the importance of their relationship with the Department for Education (DfE) and the Education and
Skills Funding Agency (ESFA), as principal funders and reguiators. We hold regular keeping in touch
meetings with these stakeholders. The Directors are commitied to the effective engagement with the
DfE and the ESFA (and their representatives) and recognise that its success depends on the Directors
and Executive leaders’ ability to engage with them effectively and to work with thern constructively,
taking into account their guidance and best practice initiatives, whilst also working in line with the
specific requirements of the Trust's funding agreement and the Trust Handbook.

Our people

The Trust's key asset is its people. it employs over 700 staff, including agency workers, and it is only
through the combined effort of this workfores, together with our supporters and volunteers, that we can
change the lives of the children under our care.

The Trust encourages the involvement of ail employees in decision making processes that impact on
them directly and further details on our engagement with our people is detailed in the “Engagement
with Empiovees (including Disatiled Persons)” section of the Directors’ report above.

Qur Members

The Directors are committed and openly engaged with our Members through regular and effective
dialogue with them, including an Annual Generzal Meeting, and through regular meetings held with the
Chair and CEQ with the Diocese corporate member. The Members and their representatives are
actively engaged in understanding our strategy, values and vision for the future, our cuiture and ethos,
our people and our educational performance and standards.

Maintaining a reputation for high standards
The Trust is in its ninth year of operation, and we continue to build on the ethos that was originally
established within our group of academies as new schools join us.

During 2023-24, there were two Cfsted Inspections at Inspire Education Trust schools, Stockingford
Academy and Whiltle Academy, both of which were graded Good overall. This was a particular
achievemnent to note for Stockingford Academy which had been Satisfactory, Requires Improvement
or in Special Measures for the previous 10 years. The Trust is incredibiy proud of both schools.

The table below shows the impact our Trust has made to the schools which have joined us: -

School Date School Ofsted when Latest Latest Ofsted
Jojned Joined inspire -~ | Ofsted Date Outcome
Walsgrave CE September 2015 | Outstanding 2010 : January 2023 Good
Clifford Bridge September 2015 (Good Qctober 2019 Good
Whitile September 2015 Good January 2024 Good
Hearsali Community | September 2018 Good January 2020 Good
Stockingford September 2018 | Special Measures | January 2024 Good
Biue Coat CE April 2020 Good May 2023 Good
Frederick Bird January 2024 Requires *May 2023 Requires
Improvement Improvement
Arley Primary January 2024 Good *January Good
Z019

*Not inspected whilst in Inspire Education Trust.
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Maintaining a reputation for high standards {cont'd)

We have evolved and systematised our approach to school improvement by adopting a staged
approach reflecting the needs of our schools. Firstly, it is essential to establish school improvement
capacity which in itself requires us to undertake a forensic analysis of school improvement needs.
Integral to this process of school improvement is the effective deployment and support of leaders
across our schools; we believe effective leadership creates the capacity and capability to ensure long-
lasting improvement. At the heart of the school improvement journey is access to elective practice and
expertise at both classroom and department level to enable those in the classroom to be the best they
can be. As leadership and learing progress in tandem, monitoring improvements in outcomes enables
us to review the positive changes in the quality of provision which leads to continual school
improvement,

At Inspire Education Trust, we are constantly refining the way we support, challenge, and improve our
schools. At the heart of our approach is first-class teaching. “Teaching quality ... is arguably the greatest
lever at our disposal for improving the life chances of the young people in our care (John Hattie, 2015),
particularly for those from disadvantaged backgrounds (Dylan William, 2016).”

At Inspire Education Trust, our view of school improvement is focused on deliberate and
intentional knowledge building. We make four propositions:

1. The goal is for every member of staff, in every classroom to be as good as they can be in what
they teach (the curriculum} and how they teach {pedagogy).

2. For this to happen, we need to mobilise for every teacher the best evidence tromm research.

3 There is no improvement for pupiis without improvement in teaching. and no improvement in

teaching without the best professional development for teachers.

4, Strong structures (in groups of schools) can facilitate better professionat development and thus
better teaching and improvement for pupiis.

We are proud of our curriculum dasign and content at Inspire Education Trust; both of which were
endorsed by Ofsted visits across the primary sector in 2023/24. At the heart of a fantastic curriculum
there should be exciting learning cppoitunities framed within a wider social purpose. A strong
curricutum inducts young people into knowledge. which is shared by our wider society and is thus a
driver both of equity and of societal cohesion. 1t is essential to school improvement, yet it is also greater
than school improvement. It is a social imperative, which is at the heart of the wider purposes of
education.

Cur curricudum is based upon seven core principles: -

1. Clarity regarding the knowledge and content selected — what it is and why it is there (refiecting
local, national, and international importance).

2. Organised by subject domain - because this is the best for learning and progress.

3. Understanding that skill is the practised and fluent application of knowledge — skills are not acquired
‘naturally’ in the absence of knowledge.

4. The importance of sequencing — foundational knowledge is given special attention so that there is
succinct knowledge for the next stage of learning.

5. What we teach is inherently interesting so that learning is the primary motivator.

6. Clarity about purpose of lasks and activities: to practise and embed new knowledge in long term
memory, enabling knowledge to be integrated and applied with increasing fluency and
independence.
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7. The curriculum is the progression model — progress in learning does not happen outside of a
carefully sequenced curriculum,

DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024 (cont’d)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 August 2024, the Trust's total income (excluding capital grants and funds
inherited on conversion) was £30,114k (2023: £23,316K) while the total expenditure (excluding
depreciation and LGPS FRS102 pension cost charges) was £30,470k (2023: £23,227K).

After transfers from reserves to fund capital expenditure in the year, the balance of reserves at 31
August 2024, excluding the restricted fixed asset funds and LGPS liability fund was £2,414k.

The net book value of fixed assets at 31 August 2024 were £56,146k. The fixed assets held by the
Trust are used exclusively for providing education and associated support services to the pupils of the
Trust.

Included within the Academy’s balance sheet at year end is a defined benefit pensiocn scheme liability
of £738k (2023: £752k), which arises from the deficit in the Local Government Pension Scheme
("LGPS") that Is attributable to the Academies. Further detalls regarding the deficit in the LGPS at 31
August 2024 are set out In note 28 to the financial statements.

The key financial policies reviewed and adopted during the period included the Finance Policy, which
lays out the framework for the Trust's financial management, including financial responsibilities of the
Board of Trustees, Executive leaders, Headteachers, managers, budget holders and other siaff, as
well as the delegated authorities for spending.

On an annual basis finance policies are reviewed and updated by the Finance, Audit and Risk
Committee.

Reserves Policy

The Directors review the reserve levels of the Trust annually along with the Reserves policy. This
review encompasses the nature of the income and expenditure streams, the need to match income
with commitments and the nature of reserves. Directors also take into consideration the future plans of
the Trust, the uncertainty over future income streams and other key risks identified during the risk

review,

The Directors have determined that the appropriate level of operating reserves should remain at
approximately 6% of the General Annual Grant. The reason for this is to provide sufficient working
capital to cover delays between spending and receipts of grants and to provide a cushion to deal with
unexpected emergencies such as urgent maintenance, long term staff absences etc.

The Trust's current level of operating reserves at 31 August 2024 is £2,414k (2023: £1,622k), which is
made up of restricted income reserves of £Nil (2023: £90k) and unrestricted funds of £2,414k (2023:
£1,632k).

Although the current level of operating reserves is above the target level identified above, Director's
expectation is that these reserves will be utilised over the next few years to fund the ongoing
development of the Trust, including the need to fund ongoing pay increases and energy cost increases
across the sector and the need to fund ongoing capital projects and developments, See going cancern
noie above.

The value of the restricted fixed asset fund at 31 August 2024 is £56,451k (2023: £35,419k), which is
represented by the fixed assets that are used exclusively for providing education and associated
support services to the pupils of the Trust, and the balance of unspent capital grants to be used on
future capital expenditure. These funds can only be realised by disposing of the associated tangible
fixed assets or by utilising the amounts of unspent capital grants in line with the terms and conditions
of those grants.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024 {(cont'd)

Reserves Policy (cont'd)
Directors have agreed to designate reserves in the 2023-24 budget plans as daicw -

The pension reserve fund has a deficit balance at 31 August 2024 of £738k, which represents the
deficit in the LGPS at the balance sheet date. The effect of the LGPS deficit is that Trust is required to
make additional pension coniributions over a number of years in order to fund the deficit. These
additional pension contributions will be funded from the Trust's annual recurring income, which may
significantly impact its ability fo continue to deliver its educational cutcomes with the available public
funding it receives. The Directors have noted however that the Government has provided a guarantee
that in the event of an Academy closure, any outstanding LGPS liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education.

invesiment Folicy
Due to the nature and timing of receipt of funding, the Trust may at times hoid cash balances surplus
to its short-term requirements.

Directors recogrise that principally, it is responsible for ensuring that Trust's funds are used only in
accordance with the law, its Articles of Association, its Funding Agreement, the Trust Handbook, and

policy.

Directors are responsible for the proper stewardship of those funds. including regularity and propriety,
and for ensuring ecenomy, efficiency, and effectiveness in their use - the three key siements of value
for money.

Directors recognise that should the Trust invest surplus funds it must adhere to the Value for Monay
principles achieving the best possible educational and wider societal outcomes through the economic,
efficient, and effeciive use of all the resources in the Trust's charge. the avoidance of waste and
extravagance, and prudent and economical administration.

Inspire Education Trust does not consider the investment / deposit of surplus funds as a primary
activity, rather it is the result of good practice as and when circumstances allow.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Direciors have assessed the major risks to which the Trust is exposed, especially in the operational
areas, such as teaching & learning. health & safety, safeguarding. as well as strategic priorities such
as Trust growth and Trust financial sustainability.

The Trust has introduced systerns, including operational procedures. annual training and internal
financial controls in order to minimise risk and have agreed a Risk Management Strategy and Strategic
Risk Management register. The Risk Management scores are reviewed at each Director sub committee
meeting for appropriateness and risk mitigation management

As at the balance sheet date 31 August 2024. current risks identified and being managed are:-

4. Deterloration it quality of education provision and outcomes
Risk theme - Quality and ouicomes
Risk appetite - Minimal
Board serutiny - Standards Commitiee

This is the core purpose of the Trust and that on which the Trust's reputation is based. The
continuing success of the Trust is dependent on continuing to attract pupil applicants in sufficient
numbers, by maintaining the highest aducationai standards across all key stages. There is a
detailed framework of control to mitigate this risk led by each Academy and Trust leadership
scrutinised by LGC's and Standards committees and calibrated by government agencies OFSTED,
RSC etc.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024 (cont'd)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

2.

o

Uinable to retain and recruit staff
Risk theme — Qur people

Risk appetite - Cautious

Board scrutiny — PAPP committee

The success of the Trust is reliant on the quality of its staff at all levels of the organisation. Directors
monitor and review sall policies and procedures relating to ‘our people’, to ensure centinued
developmant and training of staff as well as ensuring ihere is clear succession planning. The Trust
has a detailed people strategy for the period 2023-25 that articulates how Inspire will be the
‘employer of choice’ along with KPl's presented at every PAPP meeting.

Safeguarding failure

Risk theme — Safeguarding

Risk appetite - Avarse

Board Scrutiny — Safeguarding Committee, Standards Commitlee

This is a key element of what the Trust does each day. The Trust has robust systems in all
academies to minimise risks of harm to all its pupils and students. These are scrutinised and
monitored by each academy LGC. the Trust Standards Committee and Safeguarding Committee.
New reporting has been developed in the Autumn term of 2024 to ensure Directors have a clear
view of compliance in this area, this report includes contact info, complaince with training KPI's and
related policy information.

Significant confidentiality breach
Risk theme - Confidentiality

Risk appetilts - Averse

Board Saorufiny - FARC

This risk details how Directors ensure Trust data is robustly held and managed in a compliant
manner, to ensure it doesn’t fall inte the wrong hands either by negligence or through malicious
intent. The main mitigations around this risk include regular training for all staff particularly re
GDFR, conrstant review and updating of malware and firewalis for Trust IT systems and gaining
independent external assurance of daia security management within the Trust. There is a data
raport that is prepared and shared with Directors &t every board meeting which detail training
compliance and occurred incidents re this area.

The academy premises are not fit for future
Risk theme — Premises

Risk appetiife - Cautious

Board Scrutiny - FARC

This risk reviews the Trust Estates strategy from a conditions perspective. Constraints are mainly
around funding to complete all of the works required. Led by the Trust Head of Estates, the Trust
Executive Leadership Team and FARC regularly review the priorities, identified from reviews and
surveys of academy premises and estate, to ensure buildings are fit for purpose and supportive of
our learning requirements, this includes the production of an Estates report that is presented at
2ach FARC meseting.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties (cont’d)

6.

10.

Unable to achieve growth of the Trust to optiumum level
Risk theme — Growth of the Trust

Risk appetite - Open

Board Scrutiny — Trust Board

A key area for the Trust's future strategy is around its ability to grow and add schools to increase
benefits for our wider communities. it should be recognised that a factor of the Trust's ability to
grow is the reliance on local, governmental and Diocesan policy. Seniar trust leaders recognise
that strong relationships need to be built with prospective schools considering academisation, to
support understanding the benefits of being part of a MAT which ultimately is based on shared
accountability offsetting the perceived loss of any autonomy. To date this approach has been
successful with the Trust as 2 schools joined during the year.

Failure of financial plans (to ensure longer term stability of ine Trust}
Risk theme — Financial stability

Risk appetite - Minimal

Board Scrutiny — FARC

Risk appetite is minimal for this risk and is currently classed as a Primary risk. Trust budgsts are
well managed with improvements made in finance systems and reporting processes. The Trust
operates within a robust financial planning cycle and the financial pasition is subject to regular
detailed review by the Trust FARC. The Trust balance sheet is strong, as is the Trust's cash
position. Reserves were significantly increased during the year with Frederick Bird Primary school
joining the Trust bringing £1.2m reserves with it.

. Failure to develop Trust strategy and leadership

Risk thema — Leadership
Risk appetite - Minimal
Board scrutiny — Trust Board

This risk area considers Board effectiveness as a key driver of a strong and etfective Trust, along
with culture values and ethos and stakeholder enagagement. This is a minimal level risk with Board
requiring assurity. Directors via various sub committees scrutinise Trust strategies and
development plans each half term to ensure a clear strategic vision. Executive leaders and Board
Directors are currently recruiting for new Directors to join their number, following the departure of
3 Directors in 23/24. A Skills audit has been undertaken and a recruitment pack shared, with a
focus on gaining the right people with the right skills including close alignment to Trust values.

Significant health, safety and well-being failure
Risk theme — Well Being

Risk appetlite - Averse

Board scrutiny — PAPP committee and FARC

A key element of both the Trust's People and Estates strategies. The Board have deemed this to
be an area of low risk with assurances required. There is a detailed Estate Strategy document
which identifies key elements of what will make our estates compliant, safe and rebust. The Trust
Head of Estates meets regularly with academy colleagues responsible for Health and Safety,
including LGC members, reports half-termly to the Trust ELT and presents to the Trust FARC
termly. The Trust Head of HR reports via the PAPP committee on staff wellbeing, referencing the
Trust's Peopie Strategy document.
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Fundraising

The Trust raises funds for specific projects that will enhance the learning experience and environment
for existing and future pupils, where funds cannot be accessed via existing channels such as
government education funding. Fundraising is primarily undertaken by staff or parents and no
professional fundraisers or commercial participators work with the Trust currently.

Fundraising is undertaken in line with the Fundraising Regulator's Code of Fundraising Practice and is
monitored by the central finance function of the Trust.

The Trust is mindful of the requirement to protect the public, particularly vulnerable people, from
unreasonably intrusive or persistent fundraising approaches or undue pressure to donate. No
complaints have been received in respect of fundraising activities and the general complaints policy of
the Trust would be applicable if so.

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting

UK Greenhouse gas emissions and energy use data 2023 2024 Annual

Change

+-%

Energy consumption used to calculate emissions (kwh) 3,685,316 | 4,189,692 +16%

Scope 1, direct emissions TCO2e 480 395 -18%

Scope 2 indirect emissions TCC2e 236 249 +6%

Scoape 3 other indirect emissions TCO2e 178 198 +11%

Total gross emissions TCO2e 894 B42 - 8%
Intensity ratio 3

TCO2e per pupil 0.235 0,185 -21%

The above shows the latest available gross carbon emissions for Inspire Education Trust. The table
shows an increase in total energy consumption across the Trust of 604,377kwh over the comparative
reporting periods. This is due to the construction of the new sixth form block at Blue Coat and factoring
in the emissions of two additional schools that joined the Trust in January 2024. What the table is able
to show is a positive down turn in total gross emissions, despite the increase in total energy
consumption and this owed to the numerous energy efficiency works completed across the schoals via
Capital Investment.

Quantification and reporting methodelogy:
The methodology used to calculate aur emissions is based on financial control in accordance with the

principles of ISO 14064 and the WRI/WBCSD GHG Reporting Protocols (revised edition). The software
tool CEn-Calc has been utilised in the calculation of the emissions, utilising conversion factors for the
specific period reported as issued by the UK government with the inclusion’ of well to whee!l upstream
factors. Cut of scope/bicgenic conversions have aiso been excluded from the boundary.

For clarity ‘Gross tCO2e’ has been developed using then national grid standard carbon emission factor
whereas ‘Net t{CO2e’ has been developed using market-based emission factor where a REGO/RGGO

certificate is present.

For the purposes of this statement carbon credits retired to offset residual annual emissions have not
been counted within the Net values reported here.
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Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (cont’d)
Intensity measurement

The chosen intensity measurement ratio is total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e per pupil, the
recammended ratio for the sector.

Measures taken to improve enerqgy efficiency
Inspire Education Trust has taken the following principle energy efficiency actions:

+ |nstallation of ASHPs (Air Source Heat Pumps) at Blue Coat.

= |nstallation of solar panels at Blue Coat.

= Upgraded lighting to LED across all schools (partially implemented at Walsgrave).

» Implemented sustainable and environmental learning opportunities and registered for zero
carbon schools.

Current Targets
inspire Education Trust has set the following targets:
« Inspire Education Trust is committed to achieving Net Zero emissions by 2050:
« Implement heat decarbonisation plans for Cliffard Bridge, Hearsail, Walsgrave and Whittle
schools by summer term 2025
« Increase scope 3 analysis to include employee commuling and pupit travel to school.

PLANS FOR FUTURE PERIODS
The Trust's pians for future pericds are focused around:

1. School improvement
« At inspire we want to ensure that all schools achieve the highest educational outcomes for
every learner so they can have as many fife fulfiling opportunities as possible. All chiliren and
young people deserve the best possible aducational provision. Fundamental to this = our
coliaborative approach to school improvement ai every levei within all of the schools in our
Trusi. Schooi improvement priorities include:

« Improved academic outcomes for all, diminishing differences in the performance of different
learner groups.

Innovative teaching and pedagogical skills.

Growing and developing our leaders.

Supporting vuinerable learners with improved educational provision and opportunity.
Going beyond the academic with rounded curriculums that provide opportunities for pupils
to experience the full richness of arts, sports, and technologies.

*r & & &

Developing outstanding practitioners and sharing good practice. As a Trust, we aim to build
school seif-sufficiency, not dependency in external school improvement support and advice.

We do this by:

« Promoting and supporting successful professional learning.

+ Building collaborative relationships across our Trust; building positive professional peer-to-
peer partnerships with schools within the Trust and with external partnerships.

+ Ensuring all schools are clear about the accountability process and the focus on achieving
improving outcomes for all pupils.

« Promote the understanding of best praciice and understand evidenced based research.

» Utilising all opportunities to promote CPD opportunities for our staff.

» Going beyond the academic with rounded curriculums that provide opportunities for pupils to
experience the full richness of arts, sports, and technologies.

+ Developing outstanding practitioners and sharing good practice. As a Trust, we aim to build
school self-sufficiency, not dependency in external school improvement support and advice.
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PLANS FOR FUTURE PERIODS (cont'd)

2.

3.

Growth

We have strong foundations for growth in place and are building our capacity to take advantage of
further growth opportunities in the future.

To ensure future growth does not negatively impact the standards of our current schools our growth
strategy has articulated the following areas that are key to being effective and sustainable:

» Robust and effective governance — a Board that is building capability and challenging the
executive to account for the achievement of the strategic ptan.

= Strong school improvement strategies and capacity frameworks - Successful school
improvement finds success when it is based on a foundation of collaboration and partnership
between Trusts; drawing on expertise wherever it might be found and sharing services.

o People and Leadership - It is essential to have the right leaders and the right team. Being in a
Trust helps to bulld a strong and sustainable workforce. it is important to develop a culture of
mutual support, with the opportunity for everyone to be involved in the Trust's strategic plan,
and continuous professional development at every level — up to and including the CEO.

= Fipancial Sustainability - As a Trust, the benefits of scale are clear and significant savings can
be made. Careful consideration is given to short and long-term financial planning,
benchmarking, robust financial systems and the level of local spending. A 3-year financial
business plan that aligns to Trust strategies is in place. with action plans developed to ensure
financial sustainabifity.

Future years Strategic Plan

During the year the Trust prepared a comprehensive sirategic plan covering future year that
detailed financial plans, recognising development plan requirements. This includes delivering
efficiencies through leveraging economies of scale, centraiisation of services. improving
operational performance, staff

training and development, raising pupil numbers and further development and strengthening of the
Board of Directors. All of these areas support the requirements to deliver capacity for future growth.

Alongside these 3 key areas sits our detailed Academy Developments Plans which have been
written in addition to Trust development plans

Inspire Education Trust has a well-established track record of delivering great outcomes for our
pupils through robust school improvement strategies and excellent pastoral care. All of our schools
have received improved OFSTED outcomes whilst they have been part of our organisation. This is
contributing to our increasing reputation as a strong Trust which we are actively promoting the
benefits of to our key stakeholders.

FUNDS HELD AS CUSTODIAN TRUSTEE ON BEHALF OF OTHERS
The Trust and its Trustees do not act as Custodian Trustees of any other charity.

The Trust does however hold Post 16 Bursary Funds on behalf of the ESFA, which are distributed to
students in financia! need.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024 (cont’d)

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS
in so far as the Directors are aware:

s There is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware.
and

+ the Directors have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

AUDITORS

The auditors, UHY Hacker Young (Birmingham) 1.L%. have fndicaied thes willingnass to sontinta in
office and will be proposed for reappointment in scooidance with section 485 of the Companies Act
2006.

The Directors Report, incorporating a sirategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Direciors,
as the company Directors, on 8% December 2024 and signed on its behalf by:

¥

. s
v ;:'ﬂ ....... 9/»6“;.«( ...........

Chair of Directors
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY

As Directors, we acknowiedge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Inspire Education Trust
has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system
is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can
provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board of Directors has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive Officer, as
Accounting Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and
good financial management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to
it in the funding agreement between inspire Education Trust and the Secretary of State for Education.
She is also responsible for reporting to the Board of Directors any material weaknesses or breakdowns
in internal control.

GOVERNANCE

The information on governance included here supplements that information that is described in the
Directors Report and in the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities. The Board of Directors has
formally met 7 times during the year ended 31 August 2024. Attendance during the year at meetings
of the Board of Directors was as follows:

Governor Governor Type Meetings attended Out of a possible
Mrs Lois Whitehouse CED 7 7
Mrs Mary Aluko Member Appointed 4 5
Mr David Bermingham Member Appointed 7 7
Mr Mark Gore Member Appointed 7 7
Mrs Sybii Hanson Member Appointed 7 7
Mrs Nichola Aston Member Appointed 7 rd
Mrs Jane Durkin Co-opted 8 4
Mr Christopher Spencer Member Appointed 5 5
Mrs |isa Hayes Co-opted 6 7
Ms Charlotie Marten Co-opted 2 2

The Board of Directors and the local governing bodies undertake annual skills audit and chairs meet
peer to peer to develop and improve their knowledge and skills via termly Chairs Develepment

-committes.

The Directors consider that they are kept well informed with good quality data, and this, together with
the breadth of skills and experience of individual Directars, enables the Board of Directors to provide a
high degree of challenge and support to the Trust. The Board of Directors meet 7 times a year with
responsibility delegated to sub - committees who act on behalf of the Board as detailed below. These
committees report back to the main Trust board after each sub-commitiee has taken place.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

The Trust has a Conflicts of inferest policy in place. which is regularly reviewed and updated by the
Trust Executive and the Directors. This policy is communicated to all Members, Directors, local
governors and employees of the Trust. and al! Members, Directors and senior leadership team
empioyees are required to confirm they have read the Conflicts of Interest policy on an annual basis.

In ine with the policy, all Members, Directors, local governors, and senior employees of the Trust are
required to complete a declaration of any business or pecuniary interests on an annual basis or, in the
case of individuals taking up these roles during the year, at the point of taking up their role. A register
of interests is then maintained by the Trust's Governance Professional, which is reviewed at the start
of each Board of Directors meeting and also provided to Trust's finance team for manitoring in relation
to any transactions with any organisations in which interests have been declared. Any transactions
with organisations in which any interests have been declared are reported to the Board of Directors in
advance of the transactions, so that formal approval can be provided by the Board where the
transaction is considered appropriate and formal notification to the ESFA can then be made, including
where relevant, seeking pre-approval.
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024 (cont’d)

FINANCE COMMITTEE

The Finance, Audit and Risk Committee (FARC) is a sub-Commitiee of the Board of Directors. s
purpose is fo provide oversight, guidance, and assistance o the Board of Directors on all matters
related to finance, resources, premises, and Health & Safety of the Trust. This committee also acts as
the Trust's Audit Committee, where its purpose is to maintain an oversight of the Trust's govermnance,
risk management, internal control, and value for money framework.

Altendance at meetings of the Finance Committee during the year was as follows:

Meetings Outofa
Director Role attendgd possible
Mrs Sybil Hanson Director #ned COC 6 6
Mrs Mary Aluko Director 3 4
Mr Chris Spencer Director 2 4
Mrs Jane Durkin Director 4 5
Ms Charlotte Marten Direcior 1 1

In Attendance Only:

Mrs Lois Whitehouse ~ CEO 6 G
Miss Michelle Nisbet CFO 6 6
Mrs Kay Grainger Senior Execufive Assistant 5 A
Mr Rob Darling Head of Primary Education 5 5

The key issue dealt with by the Finance Committee during the year was the review of the Trust's 3-
year financial forecasts and the actions required to address the impact of increased cosl pressures
expected over this forecast period.

REVIEW OF VALUE FOR MONEY

As accounting officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for ensuring that the Trust delivers
good value in the use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money
refers to the educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources
received.

The accounting officer considers how the Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for
money during each academic year, and reparis to the board of Directors where value for maney can
be improved.

The accounting officer for the Trust has delivered improved value for money during the year, examples
have included:

» Implemented a new Management Information System Arbor across the entire Trust. This delivers
improved reporting delivered at the click of a button and agile parental communication reducing
administration burdens across staffing.

» LED lightening and automated lighting controls have been implemented in all of our schools
significantly reducing our energy costs,

+ Introduced IMP software which has enabled detailed KPI information to be produced at school and
Trust level to support Finance reports and signpost area’s of inefficiency via comparison to like for
like organisations.

THE PURPOSE OF THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate
all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can therefore only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process
designed to identify and priori(ise the risks to the achievement of the Trust’s policies, aims and
objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be
realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively, and economically.
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THE PURPOSE OF THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL {cont’d)
The system of internal control has been in place in Inspire Education Trust for the period from
1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial

statements.

CAPACITY TO HANDLE RISK

The Board of Directors has reviewed the key risks to which the Trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The
Board of Directors is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating, and
managing the Trust's significant risks that has been in place for the period from 1 September 2023 to
31 August 2024 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This
process is regularly reviewed by the Board of Directors.

THE RISK AND CONTROL. FRAMEWORK

The Trust's system of internal financial contrel is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of
delegation and accountability. In particular it includes:

+ comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and regular financial
reports which are reviewed and agreed by the Directors

» regular reviews by the Finance Committee (FARC) of reporis which indicate financial

performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure

programmes.,

setting targets to measure financial and other performance.

clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines.

delegation of authorily and segregation of duties.

identification and management of risks: and

internal audit scrutiny

The Board of Directors has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and with effect

from September 2023 appointed Bishop Fleming to provide the internal audit services.

The internal auditor's role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks
on the Trust's financial systems. In particular, the checks carried out in the current period included

testing of;

» Payroll and HR-
» Purchase to Pay processes

REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS
As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive officer has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of
the system of internal control. During the year ended 31 August 2024 the review has been informed

by:

the work of the internal auditor.
the work of the external auditor.
e the work of the executive managers within the Trust who have responsibility for the development

and maintenance of the internal control framework.

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system
of internal control by the Finance Committee (FARC} and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure
cantinuous improvement of the systems is being put in place.
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024 {cont’d)

CONCLUSION

Based on the advice of the audit and risk committee and the accounting officer, the board of trustees
is of the opinion that the Trust has an adequate and effective framework for gevernance, risk
management and control.

Approved by order of the Board of Directors on 18 December 2024 and signed on its behalf by:

...... A s et é‘h u?(.%"r.fru"“‘“@
Mark Gore Lois Whitehouse

Chaiz of Directors Accounting Officer
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2024

As Accounting Officer of Inspire Education Trust, 1 have considered my responsibility to notify the Board of
Directors and the Education Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and non-
compliance with ESFA terms and conditions of funding, including for estates safety and management, under
the funding agreement, between the Academy Trust and the Secretary of State. As part of my consideration
I have had due regard to the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2023, including responsibility for

estates safety and management.

| confirm that | and the Academy Trust Board of Directors are able to identify any material ireguiar or
improper use of funds by the academy Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of
funding under the academy Trust's funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook 2023 including
responsibilities for estates safety and management.

1 confirm that no instances of material irregular, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered
to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Board of

Directors and ESFA.

(—

-------------------------------------

L Whitehouse
Accounting Officer
18 December 2024
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The Trustees, who are also the Directors of the Charitable Company for the purposes of company law, are
responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report and the financial statements in accordance with the Annual
Accounts Direction issued by the Education Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directars to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company
law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a tiue and
fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of
resources, including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the
Directors are required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently:
observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2023 to 2024;

« make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

¢ state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards FRS102 have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements, and

* prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Charitable Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting recoids that are sufficient to show and
explain the Charitable Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy al any time ihe
financial position of the Charitable Company and enable them to enswie that the financial statemenis comply
with the Companies Act 2008, They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Charitable
Company and hence for taking reaspnable stepe for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the Charitable Company applies
financial and other controls, which conform to the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from the ESFA/DIE have been applied
for the purposes infended.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity =i ihe corporate and financial information
included on the Charitable Company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation
and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions. ‘

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Directors on 18 December 2024 and signed on its behalf
by:

1. L
............ /?ﬁ&/

M Gore
Chair of Direciors
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF INSPIRE EDUCATION TRUST FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Inspire Education Trust for the year ended 31 August 2024

which comprise Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet and the Statement of Cash Flows and

notes to the financial statement, including significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards,
including FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United

Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), the Charities SORP 2018 and the Academies Accounts

Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of the Inspire Education Trusts affairs as at 31 August 2024 and of its
incoming resources and application of resources, including income and expenditure, for the year then
ended;

have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

o have been prepared In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities
SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024.

Basis for opinien
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
charitable company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinici.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statemenis, we have concluded that the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of

accounting in the preparation of the financial statement is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or

conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt an the Inspire Education Trusts ability to

continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financiat statements are
authaorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect to going concern are described in

the relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information inciuded in the annual report other than the financial

statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Directors are responsible for the other information

contained within the financial statements. Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we de not express any form of
assurance conclusion therecon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and. in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent
material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the
financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If. based on the work we have
periormed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of our audit

¢ the information given in the Directors' report {incorporating the Strategic Report, and ihs Directors Report)
for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consisient with the financial
staiements; and

¢ the Directors' report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requiremenis.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the charitable company and iis envirenment obtained in
the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Directors’ report. We have
nathing to report in respect of the Jollowing matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us {o report io
yout if, in our apinion;
* adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
recetved from branches not visited by us; or
the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully in the Directors' responsibilities statement set out on page 37, the Directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view, and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary lo enable the preparation of
financiat statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Inspire Education
Trusts ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matiers related io going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the charitable
company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of ihe financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstalement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements. '

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of
irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities,
including fraud is detailed below:
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Based on our understanding of the Inspire Education Trust and the industry in which it operates, we identified
that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws and regulations related to the acts by the Inspire
Education Trust, which were contrary to applicable laws and regulations including fraud, and we considered
the extent fo which non-compliance might have a material effect on the financiai statements. We also
considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the preparation of the financial
statements such as the Companies Act 2006, Charities SORP 2019 and Academies Accounts Direction 2023
to 2024, We evaluated management's incentives and oppertunities for fraudulent manipulation of the
financial statements (including the risk of override of controts), and determined that the principal risks were
related to inflated revenue and the Inspire Education Trust’s net income for the vear.

Audit procedures performed included: review of the financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting
documentation, review of correspondence with and reports to the regulators, including correspendence with
the Education and Skills Funding Agency review of correspondence with legal advisors, enquiries of
management and review of internal audit reports in so far as they related to the financial statements, and
tesling of journals and evaluating whether there was evidence of bias by the Directors that represented a risk
of material misstatement due to fraud.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and the further removed non-
compliance with laws and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial
statements, the less likely we would become aware of it. Also, the risk of not detecting a material
misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through
collusion.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (UK), we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to-those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate fo provide a basis for our copinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstaterment resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may invoive
caliusion, Torgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2 Qbtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpese of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the academy trust's internal control.

» Evaiuate the sppropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material uncertainty exists -related to events or
canditions that may cast significant doubt on the academy trust's ability o continue as a going concem. If
we conciude that a material uncertainty exists. we are required tc draw attention in our auditor's report fo
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are nadequate, to madify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditer's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the academy trust to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disciosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.



INSPIRE EDUCATION TRUST 41

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF INSPIRE EDUCATION TRUST FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024 (cont'd)

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Inspire Education Trust's members, as a body, in accordance wiiy Chapter
3 of Part 18 of the Companies Act 2006. Ow audit work has been undenaken so that we might state to the
Inspire Education Trust's members those maiters we are required to staie to them in an auditor's report and
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitied by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Inspire Education Trust's members those matters we are required to state to them in
an auditor's teperi and for no other purpose. To the fullest exiont permitted by 1aw, we do not accept or
assume responsibiliiy to anyone other than the Inspire Educatien Trust's and the Inspire Education Trust's
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

---------------------------------------------------------

Malcolm Winston

Senior Statutory Auditor

UHY Hacker Young (Birmingham) LLP, Statutory &y
9-11 Vittoria Street

Birmingham

B1 3ND

18 December 2024
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO INSPIRE
EDUCATION TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 AUGUST 2024

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 24 June 2024 and further to the requirements
of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA), as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2023
to 2024 we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether, the expenditure
disbursed and income received by the Inspire Education Trust during the period 1 September 2023 to 31
August 2024 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions
conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to the Inspire Education Trust and the ESFA in accordance with our engagement
letter. QOur review has been undertaken so that we might state to the governing body and the ESFA those
matters we are required to state to it in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Inspire Education Trust and the
ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Inspire Education Trust's accounting officer and the reporting

accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of the Inspire Education Trusts funding
agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 1 July 2013, and the Academy Trust Handbook
extant from 1 September 2023 for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income recelved is applied for the
purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern

them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement lefter and the
requirements of the Academies: Accotints Direction 2023 to 2024. We report to you whether, anything has
come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure
disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2023 te 31 August 2024 have not been
applied te purposes intended by Parliament and the financial fransactions do not conform to the authorities
which govern them,

Approach
We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and
Reporting Accountants issued by the ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in

our engagement letter,

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order te provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagemert is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters
that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive
ppinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of
the mulii academy trust's income and expenditure.

Summary of the work undertaken was as follows:

= Analytical review of the Inspire Education Trust's general activities are within the muiti academy trusts

framework of authorities;
o Consideration of the evidence supporting the Accounting Officer's statement on regularity, propriety and

compliance;
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31 AUGUST 2024 {(coni'd)

Appreach (cont'd)

*  Review of the general conirol environment for the inspire Education Trust on financial statements and on
regularity:

*  Sample testing of expendilure transactions io ensure the activily is permissible within the mulli academy
trust's framework of authority;

*  Confirmation that a sample of expenditure has been appropriately authorised in accordance with the multi
academy trust's delegated authorities;

* Formal representations obtained from the board of directors and the accounting cfficer acknowledging the
responsibilities including disclosing all non compliance with laws and regulations specific fo the
authorising framework;

* Corfirmation that any exira contractual payments such as severance and compensation payments have
been appropriately authorised;

*  Review of credit card expenditure for any indication of personal use by staff, principal or directors;

* Review of specific terms of grant funding within the funding agreement;

* Review of related party transactions for connections with the principalfiinarice marnager or directors; and

*  Review of income received in accordance with the activities permitted within the multi academy trust's
charitable objectives.

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attentlon which suggests that in =il material respects the
e cisburasd and ncome recaved diging he petiog 1 September 2023 to & August 2024 has not
i purposes intended b Parllament and B finanoial ennaaipans de not conform to the
s wviich govern them,

=
Baer

ELnng

( e w\;\wg&\g}“‘g P

Reporting
UHY Hacker Young {Birmingham) LLP
9-11 Viftoria Strest

Birmingham

B1 3ND

18 December 2024
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024
(Including Income and Expenditure Account)

Restricted
Restricted Fixed
Unrestricted  General Asset Total Total
Funds Funds Funds 2024 2023
Note £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Income from:
Donations and capital grants 3 107 - 3,166 3,273 1,127
Transferred from Local Authority on
conversion 3&3 1,394 (823) 18,791 19,362 -
Charitable activities;
- Funding for the academy trust's
educational operations 4 208 29177 - 29,388 22,704
Other trading activities 5 548 - 548 470
investment income 6 73 - 73 32
Total 2,331 28,354 21,957 862,642 24,333
Expenditure on:
Raising funds 7 791 - - 791 602
Charitable activities:
- Academy trust's educational operaiions 7 - 29,446 1,171 30,617 23,902
Total 781 29 446 1,171 31,408 24,504
Net income/(expenditure) 1,640 (1,092) 20,786 21,234 {171)
Transfers between funds 17 {658) 412 248 -
Other recognised galns and losses
Loss on disposal of fixed asset - ~ - - (4)
Actuarial gain on defined benefit pension
schemes 28 - 759 - 759 3,210
Asset ceiling adjustment 29 - (155) - {165) _ {68)
Net movement in funds 882 79 21,032 21,838 2,968
Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward 17 1,632 {662) 35,419 36,289 33,320
Total funds carried forward 17 2,414 (583) 56,451 58,127 36,289

All of the Inspire Education Trust's activities derive from acquisitions and continuing operations during the

above two financial periods.
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Note 2024 2023
£000 £'000
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 13 56,146 35,030
56,146 35,030
Current assets
Debtors 14 301 695
Cash at &ank and in hand 4,967 3,832
5,868 4,527
Current Habilities
Creditors: Amounts failing due within one year 15 {3.149) (1,809)
Met current assets 2,719 2,718
Total assets less current liabilities 68,865 37,748
Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year 18 - {707}
Net assets excluding pension liability 58,865 37,041
Defined benefit pension scheme liability 28 (738) (752)
Total Net Assets 58,127 36,289_
Funds of the Academy:
Restricted funds
- Fixed asset fund 17 66,451 35,419
- Restricted income fund 17 - 20
- Perision resetve 17 (738) {752)
Total Restricted Funds 55,713 34,757
Unrestricted income fund 17 2414 1,632
Total Unrestricted Funds 2,414 1,632
Total Funds 58,127 35282

The financial statements on pages 44 to 7C were approved by the Directors and autherised for issue an 18

December 2024 and signed crt their behalf by

STORORSORRP « < S AR 2 . S
M Gore V

Chair
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Notes 2024 2023
£'000 £'000

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash provided by operating activities 21 1,377 420
Cash flows from investing activities 22 (257) {56)
Cash flows from financing activities 23 18 -
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting period 1,135 _ 364
Cash and cash egquivalents at 1 September 24 3,832 3,468

Cash and cash eguivalents at 31 August 24 4,967 3,832
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024

1 Statement of Accounting Policies
A summary of principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where
noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporling Standard
Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities :
Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with
the Financial Reporting Standard appiicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland {FRS 102) (Charities
SORP (FRS 102)}, the Acadsmies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by ESFA. the Charilies Act
2011 and the Companies Act 2006,

Inspire Education Trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.

Going Concern

The directors assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any matenial
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the company
to continue as a going concern. The directors make this assessment in respect of a period of at least one
year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and have concluded that the
Academy Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future
and there are no material uncertainties about the Academy Trust's ability to continue as a going concern,
thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

income
All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy Trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt
is probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

» Grants
Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on 2 receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-
related conditions there is not unconditional entittement to the income and its recognition is deferred
and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where
entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which
it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised
as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an entitiement and are not deferred over the life of
the asset on which they are expended. Unspent amounts of capitai grant are reflected in the balance
sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund.

¢ Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis where there is certainty of receipt and the amount can
be reliably measured.

s Other income
Other income, inciuding the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the
extent the Academy Trust has provided the goods or services.

¢ Transfer on conversion
Where assets are received by the trust on conversion to an academy, the transferred assets are
measured at fair value and recognised in the balance sheet at the point when the risks and rewards of
ownership pass to the trust. An equal amount of income is recognised as Transfer on conversion
within Donations and capital grant income.
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= Transfers of existing academies into the trust
Where assets are received on the transfer of an existing academy info the trust, the transferred
assets are measured at lair value and recognised in the balance sheet at the point when the risks and
rewards of ownership pass to the trust, which is on signing of the transfer agreement with the
transferring trust. An equal amount of income is recognised for the Transfer of an existing academy
into the trust within Donations and capital grant income,

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or consfructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a
third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the
amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each
activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs involved in
undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that activity.
Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are not attributable to a
single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources.
Central staff costs are allocated an the basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the
portion of the asset's use.

® Charitable Activitias
These are costs incurred on the Academy Trust's educational operations, including support costs and
costs relating fo the governance of the Academy Trust apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

Tangible Fixed Assets

Assets costing £3,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any pravision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed asseis have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either frem the
government aor from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated
over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding
requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in
the Statement of Financial Activities and carried forward in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on the
relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial
Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such
assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation Policy

Depreciation Is provided on a straight line basis on the cost of {angible fixed assets, to write them down to
their estimated residual vaiues over their expected useful lives. The principal annual rates used for assets
are:

Leasehold property 2% (50 years)
Leasehold improvements 2% - 20% (5 - 5O years)
Furniture and equipment 10% - 20% (5 - 10 years)
Computer equipment and software 33% (3 years)
Motor vehicles 33% (3 years)

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying vaiue of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of
fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are
recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities.
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Liabili{ies
Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settiement, and the amount of
the settlement can be estimated reliably. liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy trust

anticipates it will pay to setile the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods
of services it must provide.

Leased Assets
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straighi-ling basis over the lease term.

Financial Instruments
The academy trust only hoids hasic financial instrumenis as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets
and financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurament basis are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortisad cost as detailed in note 14. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank - is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and cther creditors are financial instrument, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in notes 15 and 168. Taxation and social security are not included
in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liabisity,
as the cash seftlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than
cash or another financial instrument.

Taxation

The Academy Trust is considered to pass the tesis set out in Paragraph 1 Scheduie 6 of the Finance Act
2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.
Accordingly, the Academy Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respeci of income or capital gains
received within calegories covered by Chapier 3 Parc 17 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Seciion 258
of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied
exclusively to charitable purposes.

Agency Arrangements

The academy trust distributes 16-19 Bursary funds to students as an agent for the ESFA. Payments
received from the ESfA and subseguent disbursements to students are excluded from the Statemeni of
financial Activities as the academy trust does not have control over the charitable application of the funds.

The academy trust can use up to 5% of the allocation towards its own administration costs and this is
recognised in the Statement of financial Activities. The funds received, paid and any balances held at the
period end are disclosed in note 30.
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Pensions Benefits
Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy Trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
('TPS’) and the Local Government Pension Scheme (‘LGPS’). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculatad so as to spread the cost of pensions
over employees’ working lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined
by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method.
TPS is a multi employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently
the TPS is therefore treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the
contributions recognised In the pericd to which they relate.

The LGPS is a multi funded employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
academy trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value
and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted
at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivaient term and
currency to the [iabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at
each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to net income / (expenditure) operating surplus are the
current service costs and the costs of the scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and

curtaiiments.

They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest an the net defined benefit ltability/asset is
also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined
benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of
the scheme assets ai the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The
difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme
assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

Fund Accounting
Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the Academy Trust at the discretion of tha directors. Restricted fixad asset funds
are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by funders where the asset
acquired or created is heid for a specific purpose.
Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the

funder/donor and include grants from the Education and Skills Funding Agency/Departmant for
Education.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, Including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.
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Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Academy Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual resulis. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial vear are discussed below.

The present value of the Lacal Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liabifity depends on a
number of faclors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumplions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed In nole 28, wili impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2022 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31
August 2024. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a Hidl
acluarial valuation would impact on the carrving amount of the pension liability.

Critical areas of jJudgement

The critical judgements that the directors have made in the process of applying the Academy Trust's
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the statutory
financial statements are discussed below:

The critical areas of judgement are accounting for government grants, accounting for the write down of
assets through depreciation and accounting for the pension lability. Government grants are accounted
for as restricted funds. The pension liability is assessed by an independent actuarial valuation.
Deprecation rates are based on the expected life of the asset,

in assessing whether there have been any indicators of impainmeni assets, the directors have considered
both external and internat sources of information such as market conditions, counterparty credit ratings
and experience of recoverabiliy. There have been no indicators of impairments identified during the
current financial year,
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2 GENERAL ANNUAL GRANT (GAG)

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State the Inspire Education Trust was not subject to a

limit on the amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2024 (see note 17).

3 DONATIONS AND CAPITAL GRANTS Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

Funds Funds 2024 2023

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Devolved formula capital grant - 97 97 77

Other ESFA capital grants - 678 678 687
Transfer on conversion

Fixed assets reserve transferred - 18,791 18,791

LGPS pension deficit transferred - (823) {823)

Budget surplius on LA funds 1,394 - 1,394 -
Additional Capitai Allocation - - - 155
Salix Grant - - - 167
Donations 107 2,391 2,498 141

1,601 21,134 22,635 1,127

The income from donations and capital grants was £22,835,000 (2023: £1,127,000) of which £1,501,000
(2023: £110,000) was unrestricted, £-823,000 (2023: £Nil) restricted and £21,957,000 (2023: £1,017,000)

restricted fixed assets.

4 FUNDING FOR THE ACADEMY TRUST'S CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES

Unrestrictad Restricted Total Total
Funds Funds 2024 2023
DfE/MESFA grants £'000 £'000 £000 £000
General annual grant (GAG) (note 2) - 20,9186 20,916 16,358
Post 16-19 core grant 1,857 1,857 1,794
Other DfE/ESFA grants
Rates refief grant - 237 237 33
Pupil Premium - 1,521 1,821 1,054
UIFSM grant - 303 303 234
PE and Sports grant - 113 143 87
Supplementary grant - - - 496
Mainstream additional schools grant - 666 666 248
School led tutoring - 50 50 114
Teachers pay grant . 345 345 4
Teachers pension grant - 288 288 80
Early years framework . 5 5 57
Pre 16 high needs - - - 52
Trust capacity fund - 172 172 -
Trust converter grant - 25 26 -
Cther DfE/ESFA z 83 83 16
- 26,581 26,681 20,637
Other Government grants
Special educational needs grant . 837 837 513
Early years framework - 899 889 598
LA Pupil premium - 41 41 21
Free School Meal Vouchers - 25 25 57
Qther LA grants - 440 440 358
- 2,242 2,242 1,545
COVID-18 DfE/ESFA additional funding
Covid recovery premium - 189 195 187
- 199 198 187
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4 FUNDING FOR THE ACADEMY TRUST'S CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES {(cont’d)

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Funds Funds 2024 2023
£°000 EM0 £'000 £°000

Other income from the academy trust's

educational operations:

Pupil catering - 155 185 100
Other income 208 - 209 235
209 155 364 335
209 28177 29,386 22,704

The income from funding for the Academy Trust's Educational Operaiions was £28,386,000 (2023
£22,704,000) of which £208.000 (2023; £6,000) was unrestricted and £29,177,000 (2023: £22,698,000)
restricted,

& OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Funds Funtds 2024 2023

£'000 £600 £'000 £'000

Hire of faciities as - 85 62
Trips. music and club 413 413 308
Other income 50 . 50 103
548 - 548 470

The income from the sicadamy trusts' other trading activities was unrestricted for both 2024 and 2023,

& INVESTMENT INCOME Unrestricted Restricted Total Tiskmi
Funds Funds 2024 2023
E'000 £'900 £'000 £'000
Bank interest received 73 - 73 32
73 - 73 32

The incoms from the academy trusts' investment activities was unrestricted for both 2024 and 2023.
7 EXPENDITURE {  Non Pay Expenditure | Total Total
Staff Costs Premises Other Costs 2024 2023
£000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Expenditure on raising funds
- Direct costs . . . - -
5 - 66 791 602

- Allocated support costs 72
725 - 66 791 602
Academy’s educational operations
- Direct costs 18,438 - 1,631 21,068 17,359
- Allocated support costs 4 3449 2,111 2,088 8,548 8,503
23778 3,411 3.727 30,817 23,502
24,504 3,111 3,793 31,408 4,604

The expenditure was £31,408,000 (2023 £24.504,000) of which £791,060 (2023: £602,000} was
unrestricted, £29,446,000 (2023; £23,017,000) reswicted and £1,171,000 (2023: £885 D00 restricted
fixed assets.
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7 EXPENDITURE {cont'd)

Staff restructuring costs comprise:
Severance payments
Other restructuring costs

88
34

2024 2023
Net (income)/expenditure for the year includes: £'000 £'000
Operating leases rentals 110 82
Depreciation 1,171 885
Fees payable to auditor for:
- audit 21 14
- other services 5 5
CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES Total Total
2024 2023
£°000 £'000
Direct costs - educational operations 21,069 17,399
Support costs - educational operations 9,548 6,503
30,617 23,902
Total Total
2024 2023
Analysis of Support Costs £'000 £°000
Support staff costs 4,375 2,682
Depreciation 1471 B85
Premises 1,940 1,226
Technology 461 306
Legal cosis - other 32 45
Legal costs - conversion 37 -
Governance 407 314
Other support costs 1,126 1,043
9,648 6,603
9 STAFF COSTS Totai Total
a Staff costs and employee henefits 2024 2023
Staff costs during the year were: £000 £'000
Wages and salaries 17,750 14,130
Social security costs 1,695 1,295
Pension costs 4,049 3,514
23,494 18,940
Agency siaff costs 888 616
Siaff restructuring costs 122 =
24,504 18,655

122
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5 STAFF COSTS (cont'd)

b Staff severance contractual and non contractual payments
The academy trust paid £87 859 in severance payments in the year (2023: £nil)

2024 2023
0 - £25,000 3 -
£25,001 - £50,000 1 -

s Special staff severance non condractual payments

included in staff restructuring costs there are 3 non statutory/non contraciual special severance payments
totalling £57.922 (2023 £nil). Individually the payments were £26,371, £7,754, £21,571 and £2,226.

d Staff numbers
The average number of persons {including School Leadership Team) employed by the Auavdamy during
the year ended 31 August 2024 expressed as whole persons was as follows:

2024 PRV

Charitable Activities No No
Teachers iy 189
Administration 214 support - including Teaching Assistants 388 338
fManagement 46 30
658 555

e Bigher paid staft
The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs and emloyer
national insurance contributions) exceeded £60,000 was:

No No
£60,001 - £70,000 12 7
£70,001 - £80,000 T 3
£52 007 - £90,000 1
£90,001 - £100,000 2 2
£100,001 - £110.000 - 1
£110,001 - £120,000 2 1
£120,001 - £130,000 1 -

f Key management personnel
The key management of the academy trust comprise the trustees and the Senior Leadership Team as
listed on page 3. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions and
employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to
the Academy Trust was £752, 521 (2023: £729,842).
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10 CENTRAL SERVICES
Inspire Education Trust has provided the following central services to Blue Coat Church of England
School and Music College, Whittle Academy, Walsgrave Church of England Academy, Clifford Bridge
Academy, Hearsall Community Academy, Stockingford Academy, Arley Primary Academy and Frederick

Bird Academy during the year:

- human resources

- financial services

- legal services

- educational support services

- estates management and premises support services
- IT and network management services

Inspire Education Trust charges for these services 5% (2023: 5%) top slice of general annual grant
incame, transfer of GAG reserves and recharges of costs incurred centrally.

2024 2023
The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows: £'000 £'000
Blue Coat Church of Engiand School and Music College 513 473
Clifford Bridge Academy 88 8z
Hearsall Community Academy 89 82
Stockingford Academy 131 128
Walsgrave Church of England Academy 094 91
Whittle Academy 53 50
Arley Primary Academy 32 b
Frederick Bird Academy 130

1,130 303

11 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - TRUSTEES’ REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES
No trustees have been paid remuneration or expenses or have received ather benefits from an

employment with the academy trust,
Other related party transactions including directors are sat out in note 28.

12 DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS INSURANCE
In accordance with normal commercial practice the academy has purchased insurance to protect
directors' and officers from claims arising from negligent acts. erors or omissions occurring whilst on
academy business. The insurance provides cover up to £10,000,000 on any one ciaim, It is not possible
to guantify the Directors and Officers indemnity from the overall cost of the insurance premium. The cost
of this insurance is included in the total insurance cost.



INSPIRE EDUCATION TRUST 27
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2024 {cont’'d)
13 TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Assets
Leasehold Under
Lend & Furniture & Computer Motor Constructio
Buildings Equipment Equipment Vehicles 3 Total
Cost £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 September 2023 38,217 632 723 3 178 39,753
Additions 3580 535 180 - - 1,108
Transfer on conversion 18,791 - - - 18,71
Donaied assets Z.3M - - - 2,391
Reclassification 178 - - - (178)
At 31 August 2024 59,967 1,167 903 3 - 62,040
Depreciation
At 1 September 2C 3,835 297 589 2 - 4,723
Charged in yaar 1,009 89 72 1 1,471
Al 31 August 2024 4 844 388 861 3 - 5,894
Net book vaiuve
Al 31 August 2024 §5,123 784 242 - < 56,146
Al 31 August 2023 34,382 336 134 H 178 36,030
2024 2023
14 DEBTORS £'000 £'000
Trade debtors 38 71
VAT recoverable 110 108
Prepayments and accrued income 750 509
QOther debtors 2 7
501 695
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15 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR 2024 2023
£000 £'000

Trade creditors 550 538
Taxation and social security 400 3N
ESFA loan 722 .
Other creditors 407 262
Accruals 757 496
Deferred income 313 202
3,149 1,809

The trust inherited a loan when Arley Primary School joined the trust on 1 January 2024. The loan of
£50,404 from the ESFA is provided interest free. Repayments are due to begin in October 2024.

2024 2023
Deferred iIncome £'000 £'000
Deferred income at 1 September 202 276
Resources deferred in the 313 202
Amounts recognised as income during the year {202) {278)
Deferred Income at 31 August 313 202

At the balance sheet date the academy was holding funds received in advance for Universal Free School
Meals £206.667 (2023: £143,712), educational trips and visits £79,310 (2023: £15,385), income frem
music £Nil {2023: £5,788), and other grants £26,999 (2023: £36,909).

16 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE IN GREATER THAN ONE YEAR 2024 2023
£000 £000

ESFA loan - 707

- 707

The trust inherited a loan when Blue Coat School joined the trust on 1 April 2020. The loan of £671,713
from the ESFA is provided at an interest rate of 1.87% per annum. For the last 3 years the school has
had a repayment holiday. The loan repayment period is not fixed, however the expectation is that this will
be settled in 2024/25, therefore this has been recognised as due within 1 year.
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17 FUNDS
FThe income funds of the academy applied for specific purposes are as follows:

Balance at Incoming Resources Gains, Balance at
1 September  Resources Expended Losses & 31 August
2023 Transfers 2024
Restricted general funds £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
General annual grant (GAG) (i) 86 20,918 {21,414) 412 -
Post 16-19 core funding - 1,857 (1,857) - -
Rates relief grant {ii) . 237 (237) - -
Pupil premium grant (iil) . 1,521 (1,521} - -
PE and Sports grant (iv) 4 113 (117} . -
LHFSM grant (v) - 303 (303) - -
Supplementary Grant (vi) . - - - -
Teachers pay grant (vii) - 345 {345)
Teachers pension grant (vii) . 288 (288) -
COVID recavery premium (ix) . 195 {199) - .
LA pupil premium (x) . 41 4N - -
LA SEN (xv) . 837 (837) > -
LA Early Years - 299 {B99) -
School Led Tutoring - 50 (50) = -
Mainstream Schools Additional Grant - 666 (666) . -
LA Grants Other - 465 (465) - -
Other IHE/ESFA (vil)) - 285 (285) - .
Catering . 158 {155) - -
Total general funds 90 29,177 {29,879) 412 -
Restricted fixed asset funds
Fixed assets donation (LA) (xii) 31,613 21,182 (1.039) - 51,756
DfE/ESFA capital grants (xiii) 3,405 Y75 (86) - 4,084
Capital expenditure from GAG (xiv) 208 - {36) 2486 418
Donations 28 . (6) - 22
Salix grant 168 - {4) - 161
Total fixed asset funds 38,419 21,987 {1,171) 246 56,461
Restricted pension scheme liability
Pension reserve (note xi) {752) {823) 233 604 {738)
{752) (823) 233 604 {738}
Total restricted funds 34,767 - 50,311 {30,617) 1,262 55,713
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted funds 1,632 2,331 (791) {658) 2,414
Total unrestricted funds 1,632 2,331 {791) {668) 2,414

Total funds 36,289 52,642 {31,408) 604 58,127
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17 FUNDS {cont'd)

Notes
i} Generai Annual Grant must be used for the normal running costs of the School, Under the funding

agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy Trust was not subject to a limit on the amount of
GAG that it wouid carry forward at 31 August 2024. (see note 2)

if) Income from the Rates Relief grant, directly offsets the rates charges by the local borough council,

ili} Pupil Premium grant has been used to support children from low income families placed at the school.
iv) Income offsets spend on various educational activities and resources relating directly to PE and
spoits.

v) UIFSM grant is utilised directly to offset school catering costs .

vi) Supplementary grant is utilised to provide support for the costs of the Health and Social Care Levy and
wider costs.

vil) Teacher Pay and Pension grants have been used to fund pay rises,

viii) The National Tutoring Programme grant provides funding to spend on targeted academic support,
defivered by trained and experienced futors and mentors.

ix) Cther covid grants are mainly utilised against equipment and deaning/hygiene costs associated with
Cavid-19, as well as teaching resourcas to assist with pupil catch up.

x) Pupil premium is spent predominantly on Teaching resources and ICT equipment/Licences to support
those children for who the grant was intended.

xi) The pension reserve represents the deficit an the Local Government Pension Scheme (see note 28).

xity Land and buildings were gifted to the Academy Trust upon conversion from Northamptonshire County
Councii and Coventiry County Council,

xiii) Restricted fixad assets were funded by government grants, a transfer from General Annual Grant
{(GAG) and by WCC donating Academy land and buildings on a 125 year lease at a pepper corn rent.

xiv) The gross transfer from the unrestricted general fund to the restricted fixed asset fund of £245,000
(2023 : £95,000) represents the total capital expenditure from unrestricted fund during the year.

xv} Grants received from the qual authority for special educational needs.
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17 FUNDS {cont'd)

Cornparative information in respect of the preceding pericd is as follows:

Balance at Incoming Resources Gains, Balance at
1 September Resources Expended Losses & 31 August
2022 Transfers 2023
Restricted general funds £'000 £'000 £'000 £°000 £000
General annual grant {GAG) (i) 64 15,338 (16,241} (G5} 86
Post 16-19 core funding . 1,794 {1.794) -
Rates relief grant (i) - 33 {33} -
Pupil premium grant (iii) - 1,084 {1,0543 .
PE and Sports grant {iv) - a7 53 4
UIFSM grant (v) - 234 1234) .
Supplementary Grant (vi) . 483 (498} -
Teachers pay grant (wi) - 4 4] -
Teachars pension grant (vii) . 80 (80}
Early Years Framework {vill) . 6585 (855} -
COVID iecovery pramium (ix) - 187 (187,
LA pupil premium (x) . 21 (213
LA SEN S 513 (513}
School Led Tutoring - 114 {114)
Mainstream Schools Additional Grant . 248 {248)
LA Grants Other . 356 (358)
LA Free School Meals - 57 (57)
Pre 16 high needs - 52 (52) -
Other DIE/ESFA . 16 (18)
Catering (xi) . 100 (100)
Denations 43 - (48) -
Total general funds 112 22,469 {22,396) (95) 80
Restricted fixed asset funds
Fixed assets donation (LA) (xii) 32,428 - (811) {4y 31,813
DFE/ESFA capital grants (Xiii) 2,678 819 (61) (31) 3,405
Capital expenditure from GAG (xiv) 7] - (8) 126 208
Donations 3 3 z8
Salix grant - 167 @ - 165
Total fixed asset funds 35,196 1.817 {235 91 36418
Restricted pension scheme liability
Pension reserve (xv) {3,504) - (3592) 3,144 {2621
(3,504) - ~{382) 3,144 i752)
Total restricted funds 31,804 23,486 (23,873} 3,140 34,787
Unresiricted funds
Unrestricted funds (note ix) 1,516 847 (831) - 1,632
Total unrestricted funds 1,516 847 {831) - 1,832
Total funds 33,320 24,333 {24,504} 3,140 __ 36,289
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17 FUNDS (cont'd)

TOTAL FUND ANALYSIS BY ACADEMY
Revenue funds

Total before fixed assets and pension reserve

Restricted fixed assets fund
Pension reserve
Total

2024 2023

2,414 1,622
2,414 1,622
56,451 35419

(738)  (752)

58,127 36289

The Trust pools reserves and as such is not required to disclose revenue funds by schooi separatsly.

TOTAL COST ANALYSIS BY ACADEMY

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Teaching and Other Other
Educational Support Costs
Support Staff Costs Staff Educational ({excluding Total
Costs  Supplies Deprec'n) Total 2024 2023
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Blue Coat CofE 7.691 1,373 514 1,252 10,830 10,190
Clifford Bridge Academy 1.489 433 77 305 2,304 2,261
Hearsall Community Academy 1,658 497 105 365 2,625 2,376
Stockingford Academy 2,403 430 122 455 3,470 3,218
Walsgrave CofE 1.579 442 103 344 2,468 2,057
Whittle Academy 1,089 317 91 215 1,712 1,449
Arley Primary Academy 544 191 63 180 978 -
Frederick Bird Academy 2.212 513 191 37 3,233 -
Central Function 773 810 385 669 2,617 1,801
Total 19,438 5,066 1,639 4,102 30,237 23!390
18 ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS o

Fund balances at 31 August 2024 are represented by: Fixed

Pension General Assets

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Resiricted
Funds Funds Funds Funds Total
£'000 £'000 £'008¢ - £'000 £'060
Tangible fixed - - = 56,146 56,146
Current assets 2,414 - 3,149 305 5,868
Current liabilities - (3,149) - {(3,149)
Non current liabilities - - - -

Pension scheme

liability - (738) - - {738)
2,414 {738) = 55!451 58;127

Fund balances at 31 August 2023 are represented by: Fixad

Pension General Asszets

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Restricted
Funds Funds Funds Funds Totai
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £°000
Tangible fixed - - - 35030 35,030
Current assets 1,532 - 2,606 388 4,527
Current liabilities - (1,809) - (1,809)
Non current liabilities - - {707) - (707)

Pension scheme

liability - {752) - - (752)
1,532 _{752) 80 36,419 36,289
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19 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Contracted for, but not provided in the financial statements
Authorised by trustees, but not yet contracted

20 LONG TERM COMMITMENTS INCLUDING OPERATING LEASES

21

Operating leases

At 31 August 2024 the total of the academy trust's future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases was:

Amounts due within one year
Amounts due between one and five years
Amounts due more than five years

2024 2023
£'000 £000
448 518
2024 2023
Other Other
£'000 £'000
127 52
364 43
2 2
493 97

RECONCILIATION OF NET INCOME/(EXPENDITURE) ¥ NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES

Net incomellexpenditure) for the reporiing period (as per the
statement of financial activities)

Adjusted for:

Depreciation (nofe 13}

LGPS pension deficit transfer (note 28)

Fixed asset transfer on conversion (note 31}

Fixed asset donations (note 13)

Capital grants from DfE and other capital income

Interest receivable

Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable (note 28)
Defined benefit pension schemie finance cost (note 28}
(Increase)/decrease in debtors

Increase in creditors

Net cash provided by operating activities

22 CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

Interest received

Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets
Purchase of intangible fixed assets
Furchase of tangible fixed assels

Capital grants from DFE/ESFA

Net cash used in investing activities

23 CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Release of loan balance
Cash inflows from new borrowing
Net cash provided by financing activities

24 ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash in hand and at bank
Total cash and cash equivalents

2024 2023
£'000 £'000
21,234 (171}
1,171 885
823 -
{18,791 -
{2,391) -
{775) (1,017}
(73) (32)
{290) 238
57 154
{208) 171
618 192
1,377 420
2024 2023
£000 £000
73 32

- 3
{1,105)  (1,108)
776 1,017
(257) {56)
2024 2023
£'000 £°0600
{35} -

50 -

15 -

At 31 Aug At 31
2024 2023
£'000 £000
4,987 3,832
4,967 3,632
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25 ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET At 31
DEBT At 1 Sept Cash Aug

2023 Flows 2024
£'000 £'000 £'000
Cash at bank 3,832 1,135 4,967

Overdraft

3,832 1,135 4,967

Loans within one year (722) (722)

Loans within more than one year (707) 707 s
125 1,920 4,245

€

26 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
During the period of the funding agreement between the Inspire Education Trust and the Secretary of
State, in the event of the sale or disposal by other means of any asset for which a Government capital
grant was received, the Inspire Education Trust is required either to reinvest the proceeds or to repay to
the Secretary of State for Education the same proportion of the proceeds of the sale or disposal as
equates with the proportion of the original cost met by the Secretary of State.

Upon termination of the funding agreement, whether as a result of the Secretary of State or the Inspire
Education Trust serving notice, the Inspire Education Trust is obliged to repay to the Secretary of State
sums determined by reference to:

a) the value at that time of the inspire Education Trust's sites and premises and other assets held for
the purpese of the Inspire Education Trust; and

b) the extent to which expenditure incurred in providing those assets was met by payments by the
Secretary of State under the funding agreement.

As a result of the Harpur Trust v Brazel {2011) case. the Supreme Court has ruled that employees who
only work for part of the year are entitled to 5.6 weeks of holiday pay fke employees that work ali year
round. This will potentially impact any employer with term time employees, zero hours employees or other
working arrangements which involve employees being employed for a full year, but working only for part
of that year.

The government hopes to amend iegislation to allow holiday entitlement tc be pro-rated for part-year and
iregular hours workers, so that annual leave is directly proportionate to the time they spend working.
Pending any law change being approved by parliament, there remains a potential obligation for the Trust
of ungertain timing, value and likelihood.

27 MEMBER LIABILITY
Each member of the Inspire Education Trust undertakes to coniribute to i's assets in the event of it being
wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she
ceases to be a member.
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28 PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS
inspire Education Trust's employees belong o two principal pension schemes: the Teachers’ Pensicn
Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff and the Local Government Pension
Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff which is managed by West Midlands and Warwickshire Pension
Fund. Both are defined multi empioyer benefit schemes.

As described in note 1 the LGPS obligation relates to the employees of the Inspire Education Trust, who
were the employees transferred as pari of the conversion from the maintained school and new
employees who were eligibie to, and did. join the scheme in the period. The obligation in respect of
employees wio tiansterred on conversion represents thels cumuiative service at both the predesessor
school and the Trust's at the balance sheet dats,

The total pension cost to the Academy during the year ended 31 August 2024 was £4,049,000 (2023:
£3,514,000) of which £2,814,000 (2023: £2,110,000) relates to the TPS and £1,235000 (2023:
£1.404 000) refates 10 1. GPS.
The pengien, casts are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent, gqualified actuaries. The
latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2020 and of the LGPS to the
period ended 31 March 2022,

Contributions amounting to £356,163 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2024 (2023: £234 535)
and are included within other creditors.

Teachers’ Pension Scheme

Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, govarned by
the Teachers' Pensions Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academies,
All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions as 2
percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and othes pansion
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Partiament.

Valuation of the Teachers® Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the
TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions
2014 published by HM Treasury every 4 years, The aim of the review is to ensure scheme casts are
recognised and managed appropriately and the review specifies the level of future contributions.

Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of
benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March
2020. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 27 October 2023, with the
SCAPE rate, set by HMT, applying a notional investment return based on 1.7% above the rate of CPl.
The key elements of the valuation outcome are:

s Employer contribution rates set at 28.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration
levy). This is an increase of 5% in employer contributions and the cost control result is such that no
change in member benefits is needed.

s Total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £262,000 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £222,200 million, giving a
notional past service deficit of £392.800 million.

The result of this valuation will be implemented from 1 April 2024 The next valuation result is due to be
implemented from 1 April 2028,
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28 PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS (cont'd)

The employer's costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £2,814,000 (2022: £2,110,000).
A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
academy trust is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the plan.
Accordingly, the academy trust has taken advantage of the exemption in FRS 102 and has accounted for
its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The academy trust has set out
abave, the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit scheme, with the assets held in a separate trustee administered
funds. The total contributions made for the year ended 31 August 2024 was £1,833,000 (2023:
£1,377.000} of which employers coniributions totalled £1,468,000 (2023: £1,078,000)4end employees
contributions totalled £365,000 (2023: £299,000).

The agreed contributions for future years is an average of 21.1% (2023: 21.1%) for employers and a
minimum of 5.5% to 7.5% (2023: 5.5% to 7.5%) for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the
event of academy ciosure, outstanding local government pension liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July 2022, the
Department for Education reaffirmed its commitment to the guarantee, with a parliamentary minute
published on GOV.UK,

Principal Actuarial Assumptions 2024 2023
The major assumptions used by the actuary were: August  August
% per % per

annum  annum

Discount rate 6.0% 5.2%
Salary increases 3.7% 4.0%
Pension increase 2.7% 3.0%

Sensitivity analysis for the principal assumptions used to measure the scheme liabilities were as follows:

At 21 At 31
August Auvgust
2024 2023

Approx Approx
Change to Change to
Employers Employers

Liability  Liabllity

£'000 E'000
Discount rate reduced by 0.1% per annum 463 348
Life expectancy increase by 1 year 783 586

Pension increase rate increased by 0.1% 449 322
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28 PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS (cont'd)
The mortality assumptions used were as follows:
At 31 At 31
August  August
2024 2023
Longevity at age 65 retiring foday years years
- Men 20.7 20.6
- Waomen 239 23.9
Longevity at age 65 retiring in 20 years
- Men 20.8 20.3
- Women 25.1 24.9

Inspire Education Trust's share of the assets in the scheme were:

Fair value at 31 August

Equity instruments

Debt instruments

Property

Cash and other liguid assets

Teotal market value of assets
Sresent vatue of scheme labilidas:
- Funded

- Unfunded

Total fiabitities

Deficit in the scheme

2024
£'¢00
9,806
6,496
1,632

1,128
19,059

19,069
738

19,797

738

Fair value af 31
August 2023

£'000
9,234
3,043
1,221
—_ 478
12,975

13,976

-

34
14,728

752)

The actual return on the scheme assets in the yzar was a surplus of £1,379,000 (2023: £155,000 deficit).

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities:

Current service cost

Past service cost

Interest income

Interest cost

Total amount recoghised in the SoFA

2024
£000
1,178

(838}
895

1,235

2023
£'900
1,250

(591)
745

1,404
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28 PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS (cont'd)

2024 2023
Changes in deficit during the year: £'000 £'000
Balance at 1 September 752 3,504
Movement in year:
- Transfer in from loca! authority 823 -
- Employer service cost (net of employee contributions) 1,178 1,316
- Employer contributions (1,468) (1,078)
- Expected return on scheme assets (838} {591)
- Interest cost 895 745
- Actuarial gains (759) (3,210)
- Asset ceiling adjustment 155 66
Deficit in the scheme at 31 August 738 752
Changes in the present value of defined benefit 2024 2023
obligations were as follows: £'000 £'000
Balance at 1 September 14,728 16,623
Scheme liabilities at admission date 2,985 -
Current service cost 1,178 1,316
Interest cost 895 745
Confributions by scheme participants 365 299
Benefits paid (291) {186)
Actuarial gains (218) (4,336)
Assst ceiling adjustment 1858 66
Scheme liabilities at 31 August 19,797 14,728
GChanges in the fair value of the share of scheme 2024 2023
assets: £000 £'000
Balance at 1 September 13,976 13,319
Scheme assets at admission date 2,162 n
Expected return on scheme assets 838 591
Actuarial (losses) / gains 541 {1,126)
Contributions by employer 1,468 1,078
Benefits paid (291) {185)
Contributions by scheme participants 368 293
Fair value of scheme assets at 31 August 19,059 13,976

The estimated value of employer contributions for the year ended 31 August 2025 is £1,692,000 (2024:
£1,013,000).

The fair value of the pension plan assets at 31 August 2024 is in excess of the present value of the
defined benefit obligations at that date, giving rise to a net surplus of £155,000 (2023: £66,000). This
surplus is recognised in the financial statements only to the extent that the academy trust can recover this
surplus, either through a reduction in future contributions or through a refund to the academy trust.

The academy trust is not able to determine that future contributions will be reduced and it is not possible
for the academy trust to receive a refund from the scheme, as the specific conditions for this have not
been met.Therefore an asset ceiling is in place such that the surplus of £155,000 (2023: £66,000) is not
recognised as an asset at 31 August 2024 and the net assetfliability recognised in the financial
statements is capped at £Nil.
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29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the Board of Directors being drawn from
local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which
Directors have an interest. All fransactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with
the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions made
on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the academy trust's
financial regulations and normal procurement procedures refating to connected and related party
transactions.

No related party fransactions took place during the period with the Directors. No amounts are owed to or
due from the Directors as at 31 August 2024,

During the year the academy trust purchased services from the Coventry Diocesan Board of Education,
an organisation in which Members and Trusiees of the academy trust hold management positions.
Purchases foialled £:0 580 (2023: £16,972) in ira period and amounts outstanding at the year end were
£Nil (2023: £Nil)

30 AGENCY ARRANGEMENTS

31

The academy trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for the ESFA. In the
accounting period ending 31 August 2024 the trust received £40,446 (2023: £34 605) and disbursed
£40.446 (2023: £38,477) from the fund. An amount of ENil (2023 £Nil} is included in ather creditors
refating to the undistributed funds that is repayable to the ESFA.

The academy trust distributes vuinerable bursary funds io students as an agent for the ESFA. In the
accounting period ending 31 August 2024 the trust received £3,600 (2023: £Nil) and disbursed £3,600
(2023: £Nil} from the fund. An amount of £Nil (2023; £Nl) is included in other creditors refating to the
undistributed funds that is repayable to the ESFA.

CONVERSION TO AN ACADEMY TRUST
Arley Primary Academy

On 1 January 2024 Arley Primary School converted to Academy status under the Academies Act 2010
and all the operations and assets and liabilities were transferred to Inspire Education Trust from
Warwickshire County Council for nil consideration.

The transfer has been accounted for as a combination that is in subsistence a gift. The assets and
liabilties transferred were valued at their fair value and recognised in the balance sheet under the
appropriate headings with a corresponding net amount recognised as a net gain/{ioss) in the Statement
of Financiat Activities as donations transferred from local authority on conversion.

The following table sets out the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred and an
analysis of their recognition in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

Funds General Fived Funds

Funds Asset

Funds
£'000 £000 E*000 £'000
Leasehold land and buildings - - 5,675 6,678
Budget surplus on LA funds 28 - - 28
Budget deficit on LA funds {50) - (50)
LGPS pension deficit - {101) - {101)
Net assets/(liabilities) (22} (101} 6,678 6,555

The above nel assets/(liabilities) inciude £28,000 that were ‘ransferred as cash.
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31 CONVERSION TO AN ACADEMY TRUST (cont'd)

Frederick Bird Academy

On 1 January 2024 Frederick Bird Primary Schaol converted to Academy status under the Academies Act
2010 and all the operations and assets and liabiiities were transferred to Inspire Education Trust from
Caventry County Council for nil consideration.

The transfer has been accounted for as a combination that is in subsistence a gift. The assets and
liabiliies transferred were valued at their fair value and recognised in the balance sheet under the
appropriate headings with a corresponding net amount recognised as a net gain/(loss) in the Statement
of Financial Activities as donations transferred from local authority on conversion.

The following table sets out the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred and an
analysis of their recognition in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

Funds General Fixed Funds

Funds Asset

Funds
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Leasehold land and buildings - . 12,113 12,113
Budget surplus on LA funds 1,416 - 1,416
LGPS pension deficit - (722) - (722)
Net assets/(liabilitles) 1,418 {722) 12,113 12,807

The above net assets/{liabilities) include £1,418,000 that were transferred as cash.

32 EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD
There are no material adjusting or non adjusting events arising after the balance sheet date.







